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 ɶ To promote healthy lifestyles and self responsibility

 ɶ To have the people and infrastructure to meet   

 changing health needs

 ɶ To have people as healthy as they can be through  

 promotion, prevention, early intervention and   

 rehabilitation

 ɶ To have services that are people-centred and   

 accessible, where the health sector works as one

 ɶ To have a multi-agency approach to health

 ɶ To improve the health of Māori and groups with poor  

 health status

 ɶ To lead and support the health and disability sector  

 and provide stability throughout change

 ɶ To make the best use of the resources available

Our Aims
 A Matou Wawata



How We Work Together and with Others 
(Nga Tikanga)

me Pehea nga mahi ngatahi me etehi atu

The actions and behaviours described below are 

how we aim to contribute to all our relationships 

including those with our patients, clients, whanau, 

funded agencies, staff and members of the public. 

We will work together by:

 ɶ Treating people with trust, respect and   

 compassion 

 ɶ Communicating openly, honestly and   

 acting with integrity 

 ɶ Enabling professional and organisational  

 standards to be met 

 ɶ Supporting achievement and    

 acknowledging successes 

 ɶ Creating healthy and safe environments 

 ɶ Welcoming new ideas

Our Shared Vision / Te Matakite 

Taranaki Together, a Healthy Community
Taranaki Whanui, He rohe Oranga
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intRoduction BY
cHAiR And cHiEF EXEcutiVE

In addition to the Board we would 
like to thank the various co-opted 
members of our Board committees, 
who have generously offered their 
knowledge and skills. Our Māori 
relationship partner, the Te Whare 
Punanga Korero Trust representing 
the eight iwi of Taranaki, have also 
provided members of our committees, 
in addition to contributing to various 
planning activities, as they support 
the governance of the DHB and our 
goals of improving Māori health and 
reducing health inequalities.

Our effort in this critical area has 
increased in the past year with the 
implementation of Te Kawau Mārō – 
Taranaki Māori Health Strategy, and 
our Māori Health investment plan 
continuing to support initiatives to 
build capacity in the Māori health 
sector, and laying key foundations to 
improve the health of Māori.   

Health is becoming increasingly 
embedded in the community as 
we take responsibility individually 
and collectively for our health 
and wellbeing. We would like to 
acknowledge and thank the Primary 
Health Organisations, and wide range 
of other organisations and individuals 

who have worked tirelessly for local 
people.

The hospital and specialist services 
have continued to experience cost 
growth as complexity and demand for 
services increase. Nevertheless, we’re 
proud of the team involved in these 
services who have done an admirable 
job in delivering good quality care 
and in many instances more services 
than before, whilst also balancing the 
resources available.

The clinical and support teams 
throughout Taranaki have again 
exceeded service level targets 
in both hospital and community 
based settings. New service models 
have been introduced such as the 
significantly improved community 
oral health services with five new 
community hubs and outreach mobile 
services.

Positive progress occurred in the year 
with the Midlands Health Network of 
PHOs and providers, and the Coalition 
of Māori PHOs beginning to develop 
primary care services. We look forward 
to working further with these groups 
to see tangible service improvements 
for Taranaki people.

We continue to seek ways of 
improving how hospital services are 
organised to benefit patients through 
initiatives such as ‘Releasing Time to 
Care’ for nursing staff in the inpatient 
setting; and being a national pilot site 
for electronic medicines reconciliation 
which we expect will ultimately 
improve patient safety across the 
community. 

‘Project Whakapai’ has enabled 
us to improve the planning and 
management of staffing costs whilst 
also increasing new graduate clinical 
staff. Other workforce development 
initiatives through partnerships 
with schools and other agencies are 
investing in our workforce of the 
future, with a special focus on Māori.    

Staff and user groups have made 
significant progress in completing 
the design work of ‘Project Maunga’ 
Base Hospital redevelopment, and 
construction started on track in  
mid-2011. 

We expect all Taranaki people to 
be benefiting from new operating 
theatres, day stay services, and 
inpatient wards in 2013. These exciting 
developments will provide a better 
quality environment for patients and 

Welcome to the Annual report for the Taranaki District Health 
Board for 2010/2011.



staff, improved patient flows, more 
capacity and a facility fit for purpose 
with new models of care for the future. 

Whilst the national Health Targets 
capture perhaps only a small part of 
what is necessary and important to our 
community’s health – they do provide 
a focus for action and improved 
performance in priority health 
and disability areas. Taranaki has 
contributed to the significant progress 
made in these areas, and other 
indicators as shown in the Statement 
of Service Performance section of this 
report.

Our strong collaborative approach 
with other DHBs has also continued 
through our joint venture companies, 
including; HealthShare with Tairawhiti, 
Bay of Plenty, Lakes and Waikato 
DHBs which audits services in personal 
health, mental health and health of 
older people; Allied Laundry Services 
providing a shared laundry with 
Whanganui, MidCentral and Hawkes 
Bay DHBs. 

Our innovative approach to 
information systems services through 
HIQ Ltd enables support to clinical and 
business services, and has provided 
valuable leadership and collaboration 
regionally and nationally to help 
deliver the National Health IT Plan.  

We are implementing our first Midland 
Regional Clinical Services Plan with 
four other DHBs, which we expect 
will help maintain access to more 
vulnerable services across the region 
and support the development of 
others. 

Partnership with other DHBs is very 
important to ensure we can provide 
access to appropriate care and 
treatment for Taranaki people, as 
well as avoiding duplication wherever 
possible and getting the best value 
for money. Gains to date include 
strategic directions and priorities 
developed for the health workforce, 
greater alignment of employment 
relations activity with workforce 
requirements, and opportunities to 
improve the quality of service delivery, 
and savings and efficiencies through 
shared procurement. We expect this 
activity to continue by working with 
the National Health Board and other 
shared service agencies.  

Services to the value of over $310m 
continued to be funded and provided 
for the people of Taranaki in the year. 
As we aim to balance high quality 
health services with our reducing 
proportion of the national population 
funding there continues to be real 
challenges.  It is therefore pleasing to 
note that the consolidated financial 
result for the Board and associated 

companies was a small surplus,  
and better than the planned budget 
deficit. This was significantly aided  
by the result for our planning and 
funding responsibility. 

Our planning and providing access 
to care support and treatment will 
continue to be for the whole Taranaki 
community. To do this within the 
resources we will likely have in the 
future however, will require some 
significant change.

In hospital services we will achieve  
this through the ongoing hard work  
of our clinicians and support staff, and 
more broadly through collaboration 
with PHOs and other partners locally 
including the community, other DHBs 
and agencies regionally and nationally. 
This will need everyone to look at 
how we organise services with a 
willingness to change, to best serve 
our community.

The following pages provide a brief 
snapshot of the busy life and some 
of the exciting developments from 
the past year. Thank you to everyone 
who played a part in working day and 
night for our patients and community. 
We look forward to working with and 
for the people of Taranaki in the year 
ahead.
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Mary Bourke
BOARD CHAIR

Tony Foulkes
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

John Young ONZM JP, sadly passed away 
in September 2010. 

John joined the Taranaki DHB in 2001 as 
a Board member, and was appointed as 
Chairman in 2007. He was a well respected 
and highly regarded member of the 
community. His integrity and approachable 
manner was appreciated by all who met 
him. Within the Board he took on many roles 
including Chairman of the Hospital Advisory 
Committee, Finance & Audit Committee & 
Fulford Radiology. 

John gave a lifetime of passion and 
commitment to make a positive difference to 
our community. This wonderful contribution 
was always made in his characteristic modest 
yet effective manner. 

He  is  greatly missed as a leader by everyone, 
and as a friend to many.



Project maunga Gets  
sign Off

Project Maunga design received approval 

from Health Minister, Hon. Tony Ryall in 

March 2011. 

“It’s really exciting to be able to 
confirm this project and assure 
all involved that we are on 
target to meet our timeframes”.
- Taranaki DHB Chair Mary Bourke

“A great deal of time and effort 
has gone into the project. 
There has been a tremendous 
contribution by user groups and 
staff working together with the 
design team so this is great 
news for all of us”.
- Chief Executive Tony Foulkes

PRoJEct MAunGA 

The redevlopment of Taranaki Base Hospital in New Plymouth 
will benefit all the people of Taranaki. With the design phase 
complete, construction work is scheduled for 2011 - 2013. 

user Groups 

User Groups, made up of staff members 

and community members have put a lot 

of time and energy into the design phase 

of Project Maunga, and their contribution 

is appreciated. 

The role of the User Groups is to 

provide user advice to the Design Team. 

They provide the appropriate clinical, 

operational and logistical information to 

enable them to design and document the 

Base Hospital Redevelopment Project 

to represent current and future service 

delivery models.  

The User Groups continue to provide 

clinical advice to Project Maunga and 

assist in the development of new models 

of care that will take maximum advantage 

of the new ward and theatre plans.   
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mock Bedroom and 
Operating Theatre

The construction of a mock bedroom and 

operating theatre was a unique opportunity for 

staff members to have a good look and to see 

and touch the real life layout, including  fittings 

and furnishings of the single, inpatient rooms 

with ensuites and theatre units to be included in 

the redevelopment.

The staff that will be working in these rooms had 

input  that  was vital to the design phase. Allied 

Health members were able to test equipment in 

the room, and the Ambulance Service brought 

in stretchers. The Community Advisory Groups, 

Disability  and Older Person’s Group also offered 

their  feedback  on the room and an open day 

for the public was held.

Positive feedback and suggestions for 

improvement were well received by the 

Project Maunga team with some valuable 

changes being made to the final design.
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Fletcher Construction 
Announced as main 
Contractor 

Fletcher Construction has been announced 

as the preferred main contractor for Project 

Maunga.

“It’s really exciting to be able to announce 

another major milestone allowing us to 

progress according to our timeline,” said 

Tony Foulkes. 

“Having completed the building design, 

the hard work will continue over the next 

two years as we re-design our services to 

get the maximum benefit for our patients”.

releasing Time to Care

The DHB has adopted this process to 

ensure that Project Maunga is not just 

about a new building but also about a 

new way of doing things. 

The programme is based on the lean 

thinking concept and aims to free up 

time in our nurses’ day so they can 

increase the amount of time they have 

for direct patient care and improve the 

safety, reliability and efficiency of the care 

delivered to the patient.  



PRoJEct MAunGA 

OCTOBER 

DETAILED DESIGN

MARCH DESIGN TEAM 
NCOUNTER GROUP 
APPOINTED 
APRIL USER GROUPS 
ESTABLISHED

07 A BUSINESS CASE 
REDEVELOPMENT

MAJoR MiLEStonES
09

10

For more information about 
Project Maunga refer to the TDHB 
website www.tdhb.org.nz

	

Level 1: Operating Theatres, Day Stay Unit, Endoscopy 

and Sterile Services Department

Level 2: Older People’s Health and Rehabilitation 

Services and Paediatric Ward

Level 3: Surgical Ward and Orthopaedic Ward

Level 4: Medical Wards

New Main Entry

Clinical Services

ED Entry

‘C’ Block

Existing Main Entry

nEW FAciLitiES REdEVELoPMEnt
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11
MARCH APPROvAL OF DESIGN 
JUNE SELECTION OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
AUGUST CONSTRUCTION OF CLINICAL SERvICES 
BUILDING (2011 - 2013) 

AUGUST SERvICES MOvE TO 
NEW BUILDING 
NOVEMBER DEMOLITION OF 
EXISTING WARD BLOCK - BUILD 
LINK TO REST OF SITE

13

The new entrance will use landscaping and signage 

to draw the public away from the old entrance. 

The permanent link, new entrance and lobby will 

be the final part of the new build where the current 

Stainton Block is. Demolition of the Stainton 

Block should take place around August 2013 with 

completion in 4-6 months.

WHAt WiLL tHE nEW BuiLdinG HAVE? 
• Six new operating theatres (an increase of two) 

• Five new 30 bed wards and one new 22 bed ward – an 

increase of 26 beds to a potential bed capacity of 172 

• Each of the 30 bed wards will have 14 single rooms with  

en-suites and 4 x 4 bed rooms, each with ensuites 

• A new 22 bed capacity paediatric ward consisting of 2 x 4 

bed rooms, 2 acute assessment beds, 2 short stay rooms 

and 10 single rooms with ensuites 

• New 30 bed capacity Older Persons Assessment and 

Rehabilitation inpatient ward 

• New sterile services department 

• New combined theatre suite, including ambulatory day 

surgery and day procedure services 

MAin EntRAncE



On Target

We are delighted to achieve better than the target of 95% of 

patients seen in ED and admitted or transferred from the ED 

within six hours. This has involved an enormous effort by the 

Emergency Department and continuing to meet the target will 

require a whole hospital approach. This achievement is well 

received by our team as we now focus on the ongoing work 

to improve the flow of patients through our acute pathway work 

across the hospital.  

Taranaki residents received higher than planned levels 

of elective surgery, with 3,199 people receiving elective 

surgery across all providers.  This is a very pleasing 

result but we will continue to be vigilant in our efforts to 

maintain our performance.

target 100% 
Achieved 105%

2.improved Access to Elective surgery:  

1.shorter stays in ED:  

target 95% 
Achieved 89%*

The Taranaki health sector continues working towards the national 
health targets, which are indicative of a wider range of services and 
efforts in priority areas. We are committed to meeting the targets, while 
recognising there are areas for improvement.

We plan to continue our collaborative relationship with 

MidCentral DHB to maintain the 100% cancer waiting time 

target.

3.shorter Waits for Cancer Treatment:   
target 100% 
Achieved 100%



Huge improvements have been made towards this health 

target and we are confident these will continue. By the 

year end we were meeting the target. An online learning 

tool has been made available for staff and a dedicated 

smokefree liaison position has been implemented.

target 90% 
Achieved 83%

6.Better Help for smokers to Quit:   

Diabetes and cardiovascular disease are among the main 

causes of ill health in Taranaki. The DHB supports the 

PHOs in ensuring there are services in place to meet 

this target. There have been successful initiatives within 

Primary Care towards achieving this target.

 
Achieved 81%*

5.Better Diabetes and Cardiovascular  
     services:  

4.increased immunisation:      

target 90% 
Achieved 90%

Increasing immunisation rates continue to be a priority in order to reduce 

the incidence of preventable disease in our community. The DHB is working 

closely with the PHOs in Taranaki to educate and inform the community on the 

benefits and importance of immunisation.
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The Taranaki DHB is the funder, planner 
and a key provider of health and disability 
services of the Taranaki region. 

Taranaki DHB Funding Allocation

WHERE tHE 
MonEY GoES
2010/11
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$4.7m

We have 104,280 Taranaki residents. We planned, 
funded and provided nearly $285 million of health 
and disability services. Of this, $147.5 million 
was allocated to the Hospital Provider.

Hospital Provider services Allocation
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$4.7m $19m $8.7m $21.6m
Community 
Laboratory 
services

Community, 
rehabilitation 
& rural services 
including

maternity 
including

Primary Health 
Organisation 
& GP services 
including

Laboratory Services for children  

and youth

District nursing 

Immunisation 

Hospital and community 

maternity services

GP services including 

chronic disease 

management and 

immunisation

$35m $29.5m $27m $32m
residential
Care and Home
support

mental Health 
services 
including

Hospital and 
Community 
Pharmaceuticals

inter District 
Flows

Residential care

Home support

Caregiver support

Palliative care

Inpatient, outpatient and 

community based services 

for children, youth and 

adults

Kaupapa Māori services

Subsidising pharmaceuticals 

accessed through 

pharmacies

Taranaki residents who 

access health services 

outside the province

WHo GEtS it
20010/11

Figures are GST exclusive



$4.7m $2m $.9m
Other 
Programmes
& services
including

Hospital Clinical 
support services

Disability 
information

Māori service development 

Whanau Ora services

ACC

Clinical Training Agency

Radiology

Laboratory

Needs assessment and 

service coordination

Meals on Wheels

$44m $48m $7m $.7m
Hospital surgical 
services including

Hospital 
medical services

Emergency 
Department

Public Health
services including

Surgical inpatients and 

outpatients

Medical inpatients and 

outpatients 

Paediatric inpatients and 

outpatients 

Assessment, treatment 

and rehabilitation

Emergency services

Ambulance services

Nutrition and physical 

activity

Smoking prevention

Screening programmes
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socio-Economic indicators
The Taranaki population sits towards the centre of the socio-economic range. There are higher 

percentages of people living in deciles 5-7 and lower in the decile four compared to the New 

Zealand average.  Approximately 82% of the Māori population is resident in deciles 6-10 compared 

to 69% of non-Māori.  Māori in decile four and five have a lower life expectancy than the most 

deprived non-Māori.

Taranaki DHB 

delivers health 

services in Taranaki 

and in the Mokau 

area, which is part of 

the Waikato District 

Health Board. The 

district covers more 

than 7,000 square 

kilometres. There 

are a few densely 

populated centres 

in Taranaki such 

as New Plymouth, 

Stratford and 

Hawera.  The rest 

of the population 

is scattered in and 

around small rural 

centres.  

Age structure
Our population is ageing.  The proportion of people over the age of 64 is higher than the national 

average.  The proportion of people aged between 15 and 39 is lower than the national average. A 

total of 21.8% are aged under 15 in Taranaki, while 47% of the Māori population is under 20.

Population Profile
According to Statistics New Zealand, Taranaki DHB serves a population of 104,280 people, or 2.8% of 

New Zealand’s population.  Between the 2001 and 2006 Census, the population usually resident in the 

region increased by 1,266 or 1.2%.

The Māori population is projected to increase to 21.1% of the total population by 2026. The Māori, 

Pacific and Asian populations have grown slightly since 2001 and the population identified as 

European has declined, as at the 2006 Census. Taranaki has 8.1% identified as European and other, 

15.2% as Māori, 1.3% as Pacific and 2.1% as Asian. 

PRoFiLinG tARAnAki

!

Mokau

South Taranaki District

Stratford District

New Plymouth District

New Plymouth

Patea

Okato

Urenui

Oakura

Manaia
Hawera

Eltham

Waitara

Opunake

Waverley

Stratford
Rahotu

Whangamomona

68,901

New Plymouth 
District Population 

south Taranaki 
District Population

26,487 

stratford District 
Population 

8,892



A dAY in tHE LiFE oF 
tARAnAki diStRict HEALtH BoARd

District nurses 
visited 75 

people

4 babies were born

Surgeons performed 8 acute operations

104,000 
people are cared for through Primary Health Organisations 

31 providers of support 
services for older people

Dietitians saw 9 
people seeking 
dietetic advice

The telecommunications team took 5,250 phone calls

1549 laboratory tests were carried out

4,889 pharmaceutical scripts were dispensed

17 people received renal dialysis

58
 p

atients w
ere d

ischarg
ed

Occupational therapists saw 8 people82
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Mental Health crisis team 
attended 7 call outs

605 patient meals were 
prepared 146 people attended Mental Health 

service appointments

Ambulance service had 35 call outs

30
 p

eo
p

le received
 

p
hysio

therap
y treatm

ent

15 people attended nurse led clinics
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Acute Coronary 
syndrome Project

Taranaki DHB is actively working with the 

Midland Region DHB’s on a project that 

aims to improve outcomes for patients 

with acute coronary syndrome.

A combined effort is being taken to 

improve the quality and timeliness of 

care so that high risk patients requiring 

angiography receive this treatment within 

72 hours.  Significant progress has also 

been made with improving access to 

cardiac surgery through robust clinical 

engagement and leadership.

WoRkinG toGEtHER 

Taranaki DHB, along with Bay of Plenty, Lakes, Tairawhiti 
and Waikato DHBs, make up the midland region DHBs.  
Collaboration continues in many ways, including through 
the midland regional Clinical services Plan and regional 
information systems Plan.

regional Trauma 
Network

Taranaki DHB is committed to 

participating in the Regional Trauma 

Network and to the provision of expert 

care to trauma victims in our region. 

The Regional Trauma Network has 

seen multiple improvements across 

the Midland Region and  the formation 

locally of a trauma team, introduction 

of a weekly trauma round and audit, 

monthly multi-agency trauma meetings, 

introduction of a ‘Trauma Team Leader’ 

role and ‘Ambulance Handover Protocol’, 

introduction of a major trauma form and 

the investigation of post-concussion head 

injury assessments. 
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Primary Health 
Organisations

Taranaki DHB has entered into alliance 

type arrangements for planning and 

funding models of care in Primary Health 

Care with both the Midlands Regional 

Health Network and the National Hauora 

Coalition.  The alliances are clinically lead 

and have representation from both the 

PHO and the DHBs. 

Services delivered include GP, nursing and 

allied health services focussed on keeping 

people well and avoiding admission to 

hospital. Service developments include 

integrated family health services with 

an extended primary care team and 

alternative consultation methods using 

information technology to improve access 

and reduce waiting times. 

Whanau Ora centre developments focus 

on delivery of health and social care to 

meet the needs of families and whanau. 

Emergency Planning  
– Exercise Yarrow 

Exercise Yarrow was a table top 

emergency exercise run by Taranaki DHB 

using the “Emergo Train System” and was 

based on a mass casualty incident in the 

community.

The exercise involved 25 participants 

representing Fire, Police, Ambulance 

and St John. Taranaki DHB staff included 

representatives from the Emergency 

Department, Duty Managers, Orderlies, 

ICU, Theatre and Radiology Services.

Others involved in evaluation were 

Midland DHB Emergency Planners, 

St John Emergency Planners and the 

Ministry of Health Regional Advisor. 

During the last year Hauora Taranaki PHO and Peak Health PHO have 
merged into the Midlands Regional Health Network (MRHN). 
Te Tihi Hauora o Taranaki PHO has merged into the National Hauora 
Coalition (NHC). 



LocAL coLLABoRAtion 

We work with health professionals, local authorities, DHBs 
and many other organisations and groups to achieve our  
goal of a healthy community. 

incubator Programme

The Incubator programme is a workforce 

development initiative and part of 

Whakatipuranga Rima Rau that gives 

students an opportunity to build 

relationships with health professionals, 

hear their stories and see first hand what 

the health sector has to offer.

There are currently six schools participating 

in the incubator programme (Spotswood 

College, Waitara High, Patea Area 

School, Hawera High, Stratford High 

and Inglewood High), with a total of 111 

participants this year. 

The students have been involved in four 

workshops this year, two of them being 

in the hospital. 

Whakatipuranga  
rima rau

Whakatipuranga Rima Rau aims to create 

500 employment opportunities for Māori 

within the Taranaki health and disability 

sector over the next 10 years. 

Whakatipuranga Rima Rau (WRR) was 

initiated by the Taranaki DHB and the 

Ministry of Social Development through 

Work and Income, in conjunction with 

iwi relationship board Te Whare Punanga 

Korero which represents the eight iwi of 

Taranaki.

It has additional funding and support 

from the TSB Community Trust and Te 

Puni Kokiri. 52 Māori have moved into 

new positions in the last year. 



stratford Health Centre

The DHB, Stratford Health Trust and Stratford 

District Council have successfully worked 

together to  significantly expand the DHB 

health centre in Stratford.

The new health centre holds three GP’s, 

a Physiotherapy Clinic, Central Taranaki 

Audiology, and two independent midwives. The 

building is also being used by visiting private 

specialists and has a minor surgery room.

The centre has a wide range of DHB services 

including Mental Health, District and Public 

Health Nursing, Fulford Radiology, visiting 

Paediatrics and Orthopaedics, and a new Oral 

Health Clinic.

immunisation 

A Taranaki Immunisation Strategy Group 

that is made up of DHB representatives, 

Midland Health Network, Te Tihi 

Hauora, Medical Officer of Health, 

Paediatrics, Midwives, Plunket, Outreach 

Immunisation Services, and Immunisation 

Advisory Centre continues to work 

together to promote and provide 

immunisation services to Taranaki 

communities.
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south Taranaki - Alive with opportunities for better health care

The project took a whole system view of 

health care services provided to the people of 

South Taranaki. The process included working 

with clinicians, community and primary health 

services and all those involved with health 

to ensure we provide better, sooner, more 

convenient health care, within the resources 

available.

A steering group included representatives of 

the local community, the DHB and service 

providers. A population community health 

profile of South Taranaki was developed, 

an extensive public and patient 

engagement was carried out, and a three 

day workshop with clinicians including 

doctors, nurses, allied health workers, 

pharmacists, and resthome staff was held. 

Public consultation on proposed service 

improvements began in July.



Clinical Ethics  
Advisory Group 

The establishment of a Clinical Ethics 

Advisory Group is important for the DHB. 

The group acts as a support team for 

clinicians who come across ethical issues 

in clinical practice and patient care. 

The group provides advice to staff, has 

an ethics input into DHB policies and 

facilitates ethics education for health 

professionals within the DHB.

Staff and the Clinical Board have 

recognised the benefits that this initiative 

will bring to the DHB.

Clinical Board

The DHB Clinical Board led by local 

clinicians has been operating since June 

2009. Its role includes ensuring the DHB 

has appropriate systems in place for good 

quality clinical practice.

It also aims to promote collaborative 

clinical projects between the primary and 

secondary sectors, and provides advice to 

the DHB on clinical governance issues. 

The Clinical Board released a policy on 

Open Communications/Disclosure in 2011 

as part of service improvement. The policy 

covers points on what to do when an 

adverse event happens to a patient.

The Clinical Board also value input from 

community members and so has recently 

appointed two consumer participants to 

its membership. 

cLinicAL
LEAdERSHiP
We understand the importance of clinicians being at the 
forefront of decision making, and encourage the input 
of our valued staff.



medicines  
reconciliation

The early stages of a groundbreaking 

Medicines Reconciliation Project, which is 

set to reduce medication errors, improve 

efficiencies and provide safer transcribing 

has been well received by local doctors.  

The reconciliation programme supported 

by technology provides a more reliable 

link between the medication patients 

are taking when they come into hospital, 

what they take during their stay and what 

they leave hospital with.

The programme will help hospital and GP 

staff all have up to date information.

Work is part of a national pilot with 

Counties Manakau, Waitemata and 

Southern DHBs and the National 

Medication Safety Programme.  

Clinical Leadership 
Opportunities 

Approximately half of all individuals in 

leadership roles in the DHB are from a 

clinical background. 

The Mental Health and Addiction Services 

operate a partnership approach to 

governance and decision making between 

service management and clinical leads. 

Similar partnership arrangements are 

developing in other services supporting 

decision making close to the front line.

The DHB involves clinical leaders in the 

Midlands Regional Leadership in Practice 

and Advanced Leadership programmes.  

Taranaki DHB also runs a series of internal 

upskilling sessions focusing on the 

development of clinical leadership skills.  
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iMPRoVinG
SERVicES
Better, sooner, more convenient health care.

Community support 
services for Older People

The DHB Needs Assessment and Service 

Co-ordination (NASC), now known as 

Community Support Services, has been 

relocated to be closer to the range of 

services that work in and across Older 

Peoples Health. 

The support service assists people over 

the age of 65 with disabilities to find 

public, private, voluntary and community 

services that meet their needs.

Community Support Services staff work 

with other health services, the client and 

their family to better match services to 

their needs.  The service caters for over 

2000 active community clients across 

Taranaki.

stroke Pathway 

Taranaki DHB has its own Stroke Unit 

as part of the Stroke Pathway Project 

to improve patient flow and provide a 

coordinated stroke service for Taranaki.  

As part of the project an outpatient service 

has been established for assessing stroke 

and TIA (Transient Ischaemic Attack) 

patients not admitted to hospital. 

Pathways have been developed for the 

timely transfer of patients from Hawera 

to the Stroke Unit, and bed management 

guidelines have been utilised so that 

stroke patients are admitted directly to 

the Stroke Unit.

This coordinated approach to stroke 

services avoids unnecessary and 

duplicated activities for patients and staff.



Kaiawhina 

“Kaiawhina” as navigators in high needs 

communities were piloted in 2010. The 

number of Kaiawhina was increased from 

four half-timers, to six full-timers around 

Taranaki.

The role of Kaiawhina is to help whanau 

in the communities in which they live, 

to navigate their way through the wide 

range of services, delivered by a wide 

range of providers.

st John Ambulance

On February 1st, St John was appointed 

to provided ambulance services for the 

Taranaki region.

The DHB ambulance service had provided 

well for local Taranaki communities over 

many years. 

Taranaki people will continue to be well 

serviced by St John who have access 

to their nationwide experience and 

resources, combined with local staff. 
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releasing Time to Care

This programme is based on the lean thinking concept and aims to free up time in our 

nurses’ day so they can increase the amount of time they have for direct patient care  

and improve the safety, reliability and efficiency of the care delivered to the patient.

Areas of focus include:

• Patient status at a glance - setting up patient information that improves    

 communication, patient experience and patient flow.

• Knowing how we are doing - developing ward based measures to help the team  

 make  informed decisions.



StAFF WoRkinG FoR PAtiEntS
The majority of Taranaki DHB staff members are employed 
in Hospital and specialist services, providing a range of 
inpatient, outpatient and community based health services 
across many different specialities.

Good relationships Key 
To Taranaki’s Cervical 
screening success 

Taranaki’s Cervical Screening Programme 

consistently tops national statistics in every 

category. 

Latest figures shows 88.6 per cent of all 

eligible women in Taranaki and 67.5 per 

cent of Māori women have had a smear in 

the last three years. The national figures 

are 76.1 and 55.4 per cent respectively.

The Cervical Screening Programme has 

good relationships with local GPs and 

practice nurses. Staff go out of their way 

to respond quickly to queries and make 

a point of thanking nurses and providers 

who go the extra mile to make sure a 

woman has a smear.  

PuEA - Persistent Pain 
management 

Taranaki DHB’s Persistent Pain Service, 

Pain Management Programme (PUEA), 

offers a different way of handling pain 

for our patients. 

This is done through the cognitive 

behavioural approach of an 

interdisciplinary team comprising 

of Pain Specialists/Anaesthetists, a 

Physiotherapist, a Clinical Psychologist, 

and a PUEA Coordinator/Pain Educator. 

PUEA means ‘to rise up’ and the initials 

stand for Pain, Understanding, Exercise 

and Adapt.



ViP – staff Wearing 
T- shirts 

Taranaki DHB staff have taken the 

initiative to support the Family violence 

Intervention Programme (FvIP) by 

wearing Family violence It’s Not OK! 

T-shirts one Friday every month. 

The violence Intervention Programme 

(vIP) is a national programme funded by 

Ministry of Health to develop policies, 

procedures, systems, supports and 

training for staff when family violence 

issues become known to health services.
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Technology Connects 
Patients with specialists

virtual medicine has arrived in Taranaki, 

allowing patients to connect with 

specialists from other areas without 

having to travel out of town.

A telemedicine dermatology pilot clinic 

has been set up which involves patients 

and specialists communicating via 

teleconference, enabling health care at a 

distance.

Feedback from patients has been 

positive, many saying they feel very 

comfortable and find it easy to ask 

questions using this medium.



senior medical Officer 
recruitment 

There has been significant success to 

recruit senior medical officers into long 

term to permanent positions in the last 

12 months.  

These include two in Obstetrics and 

Gynaecology, two Internal Medicine 

Physicians – Renal sub-speciality, three 

Anaesthetists, two Geriatricians as well as 

appointments for Emergency Medicine 

and Psychiatry.

We are in discussions with senior 

registrars who will complete their 

vocational training in the next two to 

three years to meet our succession 

planning requirements.  This will reduce 

the time to recruit into senior medical 

officer vacancies which historically has 

been between two to three years to make 

a permanent appointment.

ouR 
PEoPLE
Healthcare is about people helping people. We have a 
great team of health professionals and support staff all 
working together for our community.

First Dental Assistant 
Cadet Begins 

Taranaki DHB has appointed its first 

Māori dental cadet as part of the new 

Māori health and disability workforce 

project Whakatipuranga Rima Rau.

This initiative addresses skill shortage 

and offers training opportunities and 

placements for Māori in the Taranaki 

health and disability network. Cadetships 

are part of the DHB workforce strategy 

to increase the number of Māori working 

in the health sector. They give students 

the opportunity to get hands-on 

experience in the health sector under 

the guidance of dedicated professionals.

This particular cadetship was set up 

due to the shortage of dental therapists 

in Taranaki and the need to continue 

to grow dental services that are more 

responsive to Māori.



scholarships Awarded  

Taranaki DHB health scholarships were awarded to 18 students studying a range of 

areas including nursing, medicine, midwifery, social work, physiotherapy, medical 

laboratory science, dietetics, pharmacy and dental therapy. 28% identify as Māori.

Project Whakapai

Whakapai is about improvement.  

Detailed analysis of our data and 

hundreds of interviews with staff have 

informed this project. 

The project goals are to ensure 

planned staffing is in place, to improve 

management of staffing costs and 

to implement systems & process 

improvements to help achieve these.

In addition to aligning budgets to roster 

and service needs, training and support 

is provided. In a number of areas this has 

allowed us to increase permanent staffing 

resource and also reduce overall costs. 
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Junior Doctors  
staying On 

Of the 12 first year house surgeons 

employed in 2010, ten were back working 

with us this year.

Coming from throughout New Zealand 

they were keen to stay because of the 

familiarity of systems and staff members 

and getting to work in different areas, 

such as the Emergency Department and 

Paediatrics.

“It’s a great place to work and the hours 

are good.”

The DHB received more applications than 

they were able to provide posts for.

WoRkPLAcE PRoFiLE 
At 30 June 2011, Taranaki DHB employed 1657 people, which 

is 1185 full time equivalents. Of those, 1335 were female and 322 

were male.

This included 104 staff identifying themselves as Māori, eight Pacific 

Islanders, 53 Asians, 239 New Europeans, 1053 New Zealanders, 

and many other ethnic groups. 



Governance         
2010/2011



The governance structure for DHBs is set out in the NZ 

Public Health and Disability (NZPHD) Act 2000.  The 

Board consists of up to 11 members and they have 

overall responsibility for the operation of Taranaki DHB.  

Seven of the members are elected as part of the three-

yearly local body election process (last held in 2010) and 

up to four are appointed by the Minister of Health.

The Board is responsible for the overall governance of 

the Taranaki DHB. Within this role the functions carried 

out directly by the Board include:

 ɶ Approving major strategic and policy   

 documents including the District Strategic   

 Plan, Annual Plan, Budget and considering   

 recommendations on key issues.

 ɶ Monitoring the implementations of the District  

 Annual Plan and Budget.

 ɶ Monitoring the operating performance of the  

 organisation.

 ɶ Maintaining and developing an effective   

 working relationship with Te Whare Punanga  

 Korero, its Iwi partner.

 ɶ Ensuring the Taranaki DHB acts legally and   

 responsibly.

 ɶ Appoints, evaluates and supports the   

 performance of the Chief Executive.  

The governance of a District Health Board is a diverse 

and complex undertaking and the Board has established 

committees so that it can carry out its responsibilities 

effectively, recognising the requirements of the NZPHD 

Act 2000.

The balance of skills and experience of the Board is 

kept under regular review.  Additional knowledge and 

expertise has been recruited to assist where needed 

with the work of the Advisory Committees.  The Board 

publishes when and where it or its Advisory Committees 

meet and members of the public are welcome to observe 

most of the meetings, other than items of a confidential 

or commercial nature.

Minister of Health

Taranaki District Health Board

Finance, Audit and Compliance Committee
(FAC)

Disability Support Advisory Committee
(DSAC)

Community and Public Health Advisory
Committee (CPHAC)

Compensation and Appointments
Committee

Hospital Advisory Committee

Chief Executive (CEO)
 Tony Foulkes

Planning and Funding, and Population Health
General Manager
Sandra Boardman

Māori Health 
Chief Advisor 

Ngawai Henare

Quality and Risk
Manager

Anne Kemp

Chief Medical Advisor
Dr John Doran

Finance and Corporate Services
General Manager
George Thomas

Hospital and Specialist Services
General Manager

Rosemary Clements

Human Resources and Organisational Development 
General Manager

Gavin Woolley

Director of Nursing
Kerry-Ann Adlam

Executive Management Team

Te Whare Punanga Korero (TWPK).

Regional Māori governance body
representing the 8 Iwi of Taranaki

GoVERnAncE StRuctuRE
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mArY BOurKE (CHAir)
Mary is a former Mayor of the South 

Taranaki District and a long-term 

advocate for health services in the 

region.  Her committee roles at the 

Health Board include the Hospital 

Advisory Committee and the Community 

Public Health and Disability Support 

Advisory Committee. Mary is a Trustee 

of the Bishop’s Action Foundation in 

Taranaki and the TSB Community Trust.  

She chairs the WITT (Western Institute of 

Technology in Taranaki) Council, and has 

recently accepted a role on the Interim 

Governance Board for a New Families 

Centre (locally).

interest register: Member: Bishops 

Action Foundation, TSB Community 

Trust, and New Families Centre. Chair: 

WITT Council, Former Chair and 

founding member of Southcare.

KurA DENNEss
Kura has a background in corporate 

finance. She is a director of the 

following organisations: Te Matai 

Whetu Limited, PHARMAC, Midlands 

Regional Health Network Charitable 

Trust, Te Rau Matatini, Te Atiawa 

(Taranaki) Holdings Limited and Te 

Atiawa (Taranaki) Settlements Trust, 

and is on the Council of Massey 

University.  Kura is also Chairman of Tui 

Ora Limited, Te Aroha Medcare Limited 

and Hauora Taranaki PHO Ltd.  Kura 

is Chairman of the Finance, Audit and 

Compliance Committee and on the CEO 

Performance Review Committee.  She is 

also Chair of the Allied Laundry Board.  

Kura is the mother of two wonderful 

sons and is of Te Atiawa descent.

Interest Register: Chair Taranaki Hauora 

PHO Ltd, Chair Tui Ora Ltd, Chair Te 

Aroha Medcare, Director PHARMAC, 

Director Te Matai Whetu Ltd, Chair 

Allied Laundry Services Limited, Trustee 

Bayly Road Trust, Member of Council 

– Massey University, Trustee Midlands 

Regional Health Network Charitable 

Trust, Director Te Rau Matatini.

ALEx BALLANTYNE
Alex lives in Eltham in South Taranaki. 

He is married and has four children.  His 

community involvement includes Deputy 

Mayor STDC, Trustee TSB Community 

Trust, advocate Central and South Taranaki 

Advocacy Service and Parish Worker St 

Joseph’s Eltham. He is also a member of 

the South Taranaki Community Advisory 

Partnership for the Midlands Health 

Network. Alex is a member of the Finance 

Audit and Compliance Committee and 

Deputy Chairman of the Community 

and Public Health and Disability Support 

Advisory Committee.

Interest Register: Member South Taranaki 

Community Advisory Partnership for the 

Midlands Health Network. Trustee TSB 

Community Trust, Councillor and Deputy 

Mayor South Taranaki District Council.

PETEr CATT (DEPuTY CHAir)
Peter has been a GP with the Family 

Health Centre in New Plymouth for 

more than 20 years. He was elected to 

the Board and is Deputy Chairman. He 

is Chairman of the Hospital Advisory 

Committee, a member of the Finance, 

Audit and Compliance Committee, and 

a member of the Compensation and 

Appointments Committee. He is also 

Chairman of HIQ Ltd.     

Interest Register:  General Practitioner in 

New Plymouth, Clinical Director Hauora 

Taranaki PHO, Director and Shareholder 

Family Health Centre Ltd, Secretary/

Treasurer Taranaki Sub Faculty Royal 

New Zealand College GP.

BoARd MEMBER PRoFiLES



FLOrA GiLKisON
Flora has lived in New Plymouth for more 

than 20 years. Flora is an elected member 

of the District Health Board, where she 

is Chairman of the Community & Public 

Health Committee and Disability Support 

Advisory Committee, and a member of 

the Compensation and Appointments 

Committee. Flora is also a Board member 

of the Fulford Radiology Services Ltd.  

Flora has a Doctorate in Management and 

a strong senior management background 

including past Director General for New 

Zealand Red Cross and Dean of Faculty 

of Business and Technology at the 

Waikato Institute of Technology. She is 

currently working as Principal of Pacific 

International Hotel Management School in 

Bell Block.

Interest Register: Husband employed as 

General Surgeon at Taranaki DHB.

ELLA BOrrOWs
Ella has had wide involvement in 

education, social service and community 

law committees and boards since moving 

to South Taranaki in 1986. Currently she is 

Chair of the South Taranaki Medical Trust 

and until her election to the Board, was an 

Associate of the Health Consumer Service, 

a complaint resolution service for health 

consumers in the Taranaki region. Ella is 

a member of the Community and Public 

Health and Disability Support Advisory 

Committee and is Chair of the Hospital 

Advisory Committee. 

Interest Register: Chair South Taranaki 

Medical Trust (operational arm, 

SouthCare), Husband Chester Borrows, 

Member of Parliament Former Associate, 

Health Consumer Service, Waikato.
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COLLEEN TuuTA
Colleen is affiliated to the following 

tribes: Taranaki Tuturu, Ngati Mutunga, 

Te Atiawa, and Ngati Mahuta.  Colleen 

is currently a Director of the TSB Bank 

Limited, a Government appointed 

representative for NZ Women on the 

Public Advisory Council for the Legal 

Services Agency of the Ministry of Justice 

in NZ, a Trustee on Mahia Mai a Whai-

Tara Trust – an A&D Health provider, New 

Plymouth Girl’s High School – Board of 

Trustee, Philanthropy NZ – Māori Advisory 

Committee member, a Trustee of Inspiring 

Communities Exchange. 

Interest Register: Mahia Mai, Waitara 

– Health Provider, Te Kete Centre Trust – 

Whanau Centre.

PAuLiNE LOCKETT
Pauline Lockett, CA, has lived in New 

Plymouth since 1981 and is an appointed 

member of the District Health Board.  

Currently she is a Councillor with the New 

Plymouth District Council where she is 

also the Chairperson of the Investment 

Sub Committee and is a Councillor on 

the Monitoring Committee.  Pauline is 

a member of the District Health Board’s 

Hospital Advisory Commmittee and 

the Finance, Audit and Compliance 

Committee.

Interest Register: Councillor on the New 

Plymouth District Council, Family Trust has 

shares in Fletcher Building Ltd.



TONY FOuLKEs (CHiEF ExECuTiVE)
Interest Register: Director HIQ Ltd, 

Director HealthShare Ltd. Board 

member of National Health IT 

Board. Wife employed as General 

Practitioner by Te Aroha Medcare in 

New Plymouth, 

AdditionAL intEREStS dEcLAREd

BriAN JEFFArEs
Brian is an elected member of the 

District Health Board and has previously 

been an appointed member of the 

Hospital Advisory Committee. He has 

an extensive background in community 

work having served nine years as the 

Mayor of Stratford District. Presently 

he chairs the Stratford Health Trust, the 

Taranaki Electricity Trust and the Central 

and South Youth Development Trust. 

He is also an elected member of the 

Taranaki Regional Council and chairs 

the Emergency Management Group. 

Interest Register: Trustee Stratford 

Health Trust, Director – TET Holdings, 

Trustee – Taranaki Electricity Trust.

ALLisON rumBALL
Allison Rumball has had a long 

involvement in educational, 

environmental and community affairs and, 

as a New Plymouth District Councillor 

for nine years.Tertiary qualifications as 

a Hearing Commissioner has also given 

her significant experience and insight 

into Government legislation and the 

implications that has for Health Boards. 

Currently she is the President of the 

Taranaki Cancer Society of New Zealand 

and a Trustee of the New Plymouth 

Positive Ageing Trust. 

Interest Register: Daughter Paediatric 

Cardio-Thoracic Surgeon at Starship.

Daughter and son-in-law both 

Anaesthetic Consultants at Waikato 

Hospital. President of the Taranaki 

Cancer Society of New Zealand.

BoARd MEMBER PRoFiLES

KArEN EAGLEs
Karen has had a wide community 

involvement since settling in Taranaki 

in 1972 and prior to being elected 

to the DHB was the Health and 

Disability Commissioner Advocate for 

Taranaki. Karen is a member of the 

Hospital Advisory Committee and 

the Community & Public Health and 

Disability Support Advisory Committee.

Since 2008 she has taken a leadership 

role with the Royal New Zealand 

Plunket Society as a Councillor. 

Interest Register: Husband John Eagles 

is a Senior Partner at Govett Quilliam 

providing legal services to Taranaki 

DHB, National Councillor Taranaki for 

Plunket NZ.



māori Health Governance Group for Taranaki

The members of this trust represent the eight iwi of Taranaki. The Memorandum of 

Understanding between Taranaki DHB and Te Whare Punanga Korero (TWPK), is the vehicle 

through which Māori influence the strategic agenda for improving Māori health outcomes.

Te Whare Punanga Korero interacts with Taranaki DHB and the wider sector through various 

Taranaki DHB, NGO and iwi Māori forums to advance its purposes.  Some of those interactions 

include:

 ɶ Regular meetings with Taranaki DHB Board Chair, members and DHB     

 officials to discuss, monitor and develop responses to Māori health 

 needs

 ɶ Participation in the Taranaki DHB’s strategic planning and governance    

 training 

 ɶ Participation in a range of project-based steering group activities where    

 projects impact significantly on Māori

 ɶ Participation in Māori health collective strategic planning for Māori     

 health gain

An important role of Te Whare Punanga Korero is to work with Taranaki DHB in achieving the 

objectives of our Māori Health and Reducing Inequalities Plan and Māori health objectives of 

the Annual Plan and District Strategic Plan.

members of TWPK

Hinemoerangi Ngatai-Tangirua (Ngati Ruanui), Pam Ritai (Te Atiawa), Rona Hancock (Ngati Maru), 

Peter Moeahu (Ngaruahine), Chairman David Tamatea (Taranaki), Marty Davis (Nga Rauru), vicki 

Kershaw (Ngati Mutunga). 

Insert: Greg White (Ngati Tama) (pictured bottom right).

tE WHARE PunAnGA koRERo

page 35



Board
2010/2011

members’ responsibilities and Fees



BoARd MEMBERS, coMMittEE MEMBERS And diREctoRS ScHEduLE
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Key:

* = Chairman

^ = Deputy Chairman

# = Board Chairman Ex Officio Member

+ = Absence for meetings due to attendance at Allied Laundry meetings

Co-opted members – term concluded 31 March 2011 with members invited to continue until end of financial year

The Board resolved at its meeting held 10 March 2011 to have permanent Board members as Committee members effective from 

1 July 2011

Board Members 

John Young * 1 of 3  #  0 of 2  #  0 of 1         9,249 

Chairman John Young passed away during office 15 September 2010          

Mary Bourke  3 of 5 6 of 6 8 of 8 3 of 3 3 of 4 1 of 2        32,041.66 

Peter Catt  ^ 5 of 5 6 of 6 * 8 of 8 3 of 3 #  4 of 4 #  2 of 2        26,187.46 

Alex Ballantyne 4 of 5 5 of 6   ^  4 of 4 2 of 2        19,750.04 

Ella Borrows  5 of 6 3 of 3 * 3 of 3 2 of 2 2 of 2        12,791.69 

Kura Denness 5 of 5 6 of 6 ^  4 of 5 +            19,250.04 

Dan Devadhar 3 of 5  0 of 5           7,708.35 

Karen Eagles 2 of 5 6 of 6 6 of 8 ^1 of 3 3 of 3 1 of 2        20,750.04 

Flora Gilkison 5 of 5 6 of 6   * 2 of 3 1 of 2        19,750.04 

Brian Jeffares  6 of 6 7 of 8 3 of 3          12,791.69 

Grant Knuckey 4 of 5  1 of 5           7,958.35 

Pauline Lockett  6 of 6 2 of 3 3 of 3          11,541.69 

Jenny Nager 5 of 5  5 of 5  2 of 2         9,458.35 

Tony Ruakere 4 of 5    1 of 2         7,708.35 

Alison Rumball  4 of 6 3 of 3 2 of 3 1 of 2 1 of 2        11,791.69 

Colleen Tuuta  4 of 6   1 of 2 1 of 2        11,041.69 

Co-opted Committee Members 

Nic Boheimer   4 of 8            

Jan Dunlop   6 of 8           1,500.00 

Peter Moeahu   4 of 8 2 of 3 1 of 2 1 of 2        11,041.69 

Donna Leatherby     3 of 5         750.00 

Brian Mathieson     5 of 5         1250.00 

David Tamatea     4 of 5 2 of 2        1,000.00 

Tom Ryder     4 of 5         1,000.00 

Tony Waghorn     3 of 5         750.00 

Marion Wellington     4 of 5          

Other Directors 

Tony Foulkes, Chief Executive           

George Thomas, GM Finance & Commercial Services           
Simon Barrett, Group Financial Accountant           
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Audit Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE READERS OF 
TARANAKI DISTRICT HEALTH BOARD AND GROUP’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND STATEMENT OF SERVICE PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Taranaki District Health Board (the Health Board) and group. The Auditor-General 
has appointed me, Lloyd Bunyan, using the staff and resources of Ernst & Young, to carry out the audit of the financial 
statements and statement of service performance of the Health Board and group on her behalf. 

- We have auditethe financial statements of the Health Board and group on pages 45 to 79, that comprise the 
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2011, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of 
Changes in Equity and Statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date and the notes to the financial 
statements that include accounting policies and other explanatory information; and

- the statement of service performance of the Health Board and group on pages 82 to 90.

Unqualified opinion

In our opinion:

- the financial statements of the Health Board and group on pages 45 to 79:

- comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and

- fairly reflect the Health Board and group’s:

- financial position as at 30 June 2011; and

- financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date; and

- the statement of service performance of the Health Board and group on pages 82  to 90:

- complies with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and

- fairly reflects the Health Board and group’s service performance for the year ended 30 June 2011, 
including:

- its performance achieved as compared with forecast targets specified in the statement of forecast 
service performance for the financial year; and

- its revenue earned and output expenses incurred, as compared with the forecast revenues and 
output expenses specified in the statement of forecast service performance for the financial year.

Our audit was completed on 20 October 2011. This is the date at which our opinion is expressed.

The basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board and our 
responsibilities, and we explain our independence.



Basis of opinion

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the 
International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and carry out our audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and statement of 
service performance are free from material misstatement. 

Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that would affect a reader’s overall 
understanding of the financial statements and statement of service performance. If we had found material misstatements 
that were not corrected, we would have referred to them in our opinion.

An audit involves carrying out procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements and statement of service performance. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including our 
assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and statement of service performance, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Health Board and 
group’s preparation of the financial statements and statement of service performance that fairly reflect the matters 
to which they relate. We consider internal control in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Health Board and group’s 
internal control.

An audit also involves evaluating:

- the appropriateness of accounting policies used and whether they have been consistently applied;

- the reasonableness of the significant accounting estimates and judgements made by the Board;

- the adequacy of all disclosures in the financial statements and statement of service performance; and

- the overall presentation of the financial statements and statement of service performance.

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the financial statements and statement 
of service performance. We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required and we believe we have 
obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for preparing financial statements and a statement of service performance that:

- comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; 

- fairly reflect the Health Board and group’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows; and

- fairly reflect its service performance achievements.

The Board is also responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements and a statement of service performance that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

The Board’s responsibilities arise from the New Zealand Public Health and Disability Act 2000 and the Crown Entities Act 
2004.
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Responsibilities of the Auditor

We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements and statement of service 
performance and reporting that opinion to you based on our audit. Our responsibility arises from section 15 of the Public 
Audit Act 2001 and the Crown Entities Act 2004.

Independence

When carrying out the audit, we followed the independence requirements of the Auditor-General, which incorporate the 
independence requirements of the New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants.

Other than the audit, we have no relationship with or interests in the Health Board or any of its subsidiaries.

Lloyd Bunyan
Ernst & Young
On behalf of the Auditor-General
Auckland, New Zealand

Audit Report

Matters relating to the electronic presentation of the audited financial statements and statement of service 
performance.

This audit report relates to the financial statements and statement of service performance of Taranaki District 
Health Board (the Health Board) for the year ended 30 June 2011 included on the Health Board’s website. 
The Board is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Health Board’s website. We have not been 
engaged to report on the integrity of the Health Board’s website. We accept no responsibility for any changes 
that may have occurred to the financial statements and statement of service performance since they were 
initially presented on the website.  

The audit report refers only to the financial statements and statement of service performance named above. 
It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to or from these 
financial statements and statement of service performance. If readers of this report are concerned with the 
inherent risks arising from electronic data communication they should refer to the published hard copy of 
the audited financial statements and statement of service performance and related audit report dated 20 
October 2011 to confirm the information included in the audited financial statements and statement of service 
performance presented on this website.

Legislation in New Zealand governing the preparation and dissemination of financial information may differ 
from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Statement of Responsibility
For the Year Ended 30 June 2011

1 The Board and management of the Taranaki District Health Board accepts responsibility for the preparation of the Financial Statements and the 
judgments used in them. 

  

2 The Board and management of the Taranaki District Health Board accepts responsibility for establishing and maintaining a system of internal control 
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of financial reporting. 

  

3 In the opinion of the Board and management of the Taranaki District Health Board, the Financial Statements for the twelve months ended 30 June 
2011, fairly reflect the financial position, operations, cash flows and service performance of the Taranaki District Health Board. 



Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 June 2011

page 45

Group Parent

Actual Budget Actual Actual Actual

Notes June 2011 June 2011 June 2010 June 2011 June 2010

unaudited

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Revenue 1 311,719      307,972      304,948      311,256      304,177 

Other income 2 61              17            835              61            835 

Total income 311,780      307,989      305,783      311,317      305,012 

Employee benefit costs 3 101,794      103,540        99,863        98,493        96,928 

Depreciation expense 9,188        10,650          9,398          9,188          9,398 

Outsourced services 24,258        21,235        24,583        24,257        24,583 

Clinical supplies 20,626        20,873        20,559        20,626        20,559 

Infrastructure and non-clinical expenses 10,907        10,830        11,088        14,300        13,701 

Payments to non-health board providers 134,528      133,743      133,582      134,528      133,582 

Other expenses 4 1,322          1,350          1,513            810          1,023 

Capital charge 5 5,748          6,038          5,946          5,748          5,946 

Financing costs 6 2,014 2,029          2,047          2,014          2,047 

Total expenses 310,385 310,288      308,579      309,964      307,767 

Surplus/(Loss) before share of associates 1,395 (2,299) (2,796)          1,353        (2,755)

Share of surplus/(loss) of associates 13(c) 104 -   (196) -   -   

Surplus/(Loss) after surplus/(loss) of associates 1,499 (2,299)        (2,992)          1,353        (2,755)

Other compreshensive income - - - - - 

Total comprehensive surplus/(loss) for the period 1,499        (2,299)        (2,992) 1,353 (2,755)

The above income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



Statement of Changes in Equity
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Consolidated

Public Equity
Retained 
Earnings / 
(Losses)

Asset 
Revaluation 

Reserve

Trust Fund 
Reserve  Total 

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

At 30 June 2009        23,190        (2,235)        51,905            723        73,583 

Total comprehensive surplus/(loss) for the period               -          (2,992)               -                 -          (2,992)

Transfer from/(to) Trust Funds Reserves               -                42               -               (42)               -   

              -          (2,950)               -               (42)        (2,992)

Transactions with the Crown

Equity Injections          2,328               -                 -                 -            2,328 

Equity repaid to the Crown           (959)               -                 -                 -             (959)

         1,369               -                 -                 -            1,369 

At 30 June 2010        24,559        (5,185)        51,905            681        71,960 

Total comprehensive surplus/(loss) for the period               -            1,499               -                 -            1,499 

Transfer from/(to) Trust Funds Reserves               -               (43)               -                43               -   

              -            1,456               -                43          1,499 

Transactions with the Crown

Equity Injections          1,514               -                 -                 -            1,514 

Equity repaid to the Crown           (959)               -                 -                 -             (959)

           555               -                 -                 -              555 

At 30 June 2011        25,114        (3,729)        51,905            724        74,014 

 This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Parent

Public 
Equity

Retained 
Earnings / 
(Losses)

Asset 
Revaluation 

Reserve

Trust Fund 
Reserve

 Total 

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

At 30 June 2009        23,190        (1,794)        51,905               -          73,301 

Total comprehensive surplus/(loss) for the period               -          (2,755)               -                 -          (2,755)

              -          (2,755)               -                 -          (2,755)

Transactions with the Crown

Equity Injections          2,328               -                 -                 -            2,328 

Equity repaid to the Crown           (959)               -                 -                 -             (959)

         1,369               -                 -                 -            1,369 

At 30 June 2010        24,559        (4,549)        51,905               -          71,915 

Total comprehensive surplus/(loss) for the period               -            1,353               -                 -            1,353 

              -            1,353               -                 -            1,353 

Transactions with the Crown

Equity Injections          1,514               -                 -                 -            1,514 

Equity repaid to the Crown           (959)               -                 -                 -             (959)

           555               -                 -                 -              555 

At 30 June 2011        25,114        (3,196)        51,905               -          73,823 

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2011

Group Parent

Actual Budget Actual Actual Actual

Notes June 2011 June 2011 June 2010 June 2011 June 2010

Unaudited

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7 3,069          2,550          2,825          2,849          2,776 

Trade and other receivables 8 8,791          8,282          7,921          8,513          7,608 

Inventories 9 2,628          2,574          2,574          2,628          2,574 

Other financial assets 10 31,010        31,000        31,055        31,010        31,055 

Assets classified as held for sale 11 -                 -                 -                 -                 -   

Total current assets 45,498        44,406        44,375        45,000        44,013 

Non-current assets

Investments in subsidiaries 12                    -                 -                 -            4,936          4,936 

Investments in associates 13 918            824            814          1,451          1,451 

Other financial assets 10 57              69              67              57              67 

Property, plant and equipment 14 101,862        97,795        99,667      101,862        99,667 

Restricted assets & trust funds 15 724            681            681               -                 -   

Total non-current assets 103,561        99,369      101,229      108,306      106,121 

TOTAL ASSETS 149,059      143,775      145,604      153,306      150,134 

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 16 26,723        25,098        26,082        31,587        31,038 

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 17 10,000            189            273        10,000            273 

Employee benefits 18 18,509        19,105        17,237        18,083        16,856 

Provisions 19 4              12              12                4              12 

Total Current Liabilities 55,236        44,404        43,604        59,674        48,179 

Non current liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 17 19,000        29,102        29,253        19,000        29,253 

Employee benefits 18 809            787            787            809            787 

Total non current liabilities 19,809        29,889        30,040        19,809        30,040 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 75,045        74,293        73,644        79,483        78,219 

NET ASSETS 74,014        69,482        71,960        73,823        71,915 

EQUITY

Public equity 25,114        24,379        24,559        25,114        24,559 

Retained earnings/(losses) (3,729)        (7,484)        (5,185)        (3,196)        (4,549)

Asset revaluation reserve 51,905        51,905        51,905        51,905        51,905 

Trust fund reserve 15 724            682            681               -                 -   

TOTAL EQUITY 74,014        69,482        71,960        73,823        71,915 

               

 This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For and on behalf of the Board, who authorised the issue of these financial statements on the 20th October 2011

..................................................................................... ..............................................................

Mary Bourke Peter Catt

CHAIRPERSON DEPUTY CHAIRPERSON
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Group Parent

Actual Budget Actual Actual Actual

June 2011 June 2011 June 2010 June 2011 June 2010

Unaudited

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Notes $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Cash was provided from:

Receipts from Government and Public 308,742      305,554      303,961      308,332      303,034 

Interest Received 2,087          2,075          1,870          2,080          1,866 

GST (Net) 462               (1)              54            485              13 

311,291      307,628      305,885      310,897      304,913 

Cash was disbursed to:

Payments to Suppliers 192,226      188,246      190,949      195,302      192,945 

Payments to Employees 100,500      102,440      100,530        97,244        97,569 

Capital Charge Paid 4,999          6,038          5,247          4,999          5,247 

Interest Paid 2,018          2,029          2,042          2,018          2,042 

299,743      298,753      298,768      299,563      297,803 

Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 20 11,548          8,875          7,117        11,334          7,110 

CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash was provided from:

Dividends Received 2               -                  1                2                1 

Proceeds from Restricted Assets                    -                 -                42               -                 -   

Proceeds of loan repayments from associate company 55              43              52              55              52 

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 157               -              815            157            815 

Proceeds from Assets held for Sale -              106               -              106 

214              43          1,016            214            974 

Cash was applied to:

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment 11,906          8,777          9,893        11,906          9,893 

Restricted Assets 43               -                 -                 -                 -   

11,949          8,777          9,893        11,906          9,893 

Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities (11,735)        (8,734)        (8,877)      (11,692)        (8,919)

CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash was provided from:

Equity vested by Crown 1,514            777          2,328          1,514          2,328 

1,514            777          2,328          1,514          2,328 

Cash was applied to:

Repayment of Finance Leases 124            234            105            124            105 

Repayment of Equity 959            959            959            959            959 

1,083          1,193          1,064          1,083          1,064 

Net Cash Outflow from Financing Activities 431           (416)          1,264            431          1,264 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash Held 244           (275)           (496)              73           (545)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,825          2,825          3,321          2,776          3,321 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3,069          2,550          2,825          2,849          2,776 

 This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2011

Significant accounting policies for the year ended 30 June 2011

(a) Reporting entity
 Taranaki District Health Board is a Health Board established by the New Zealand Public Health and Disability Act 2000. Taranaki 

District Health Board is a crown entity in terms of the Crown Entities Act 2004, owned by the Crown and domiciled in New 
Zealand. 

 The financial statements of Taranaki District Health Board have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the New 
Zealand Public Health and Disability Act 2000 and Finance Act 1989.

 Taranaki District Health Board is a public benefit entity, as defined by NZIAS 1.

 The Taranaki District Health Board consolidated financial statements comprise those of Taranaki District Health Board, a 100% 
investment in HIQ Limited, a 50% investment in Fulford Radiology Services Limited, a 25% investment in Allied Laundry Services 
Limited and a 20% investment in HealthShare Limited. 

 Taranaki District Health Board operates in Taranaki. It has three key roles, namely (i) Planning to determine the health needs of 
Taranaki and how these can be met, (ii) Funding organisations and individuals to provide specific health services and (iii) Providing 
specific health services to the Taranaki community.

 The financial statements of Taranaki District Health Board are for the year ended 30 June 2011. The financial statements were 
authorised for issue by the Board on 20 October 2011.

(b) Statement of compliance and basis of preparation
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles). They 

comply with the New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards ("NZIFRS"), and other applicable Financial 
Reporting Standards, as appropriate for public benefit entities.

 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, modified by the revaluation of land and buildings, certain 
investments and derivative financial instruments.

 (i) Functional and presentation currency
 The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars which is the functional currency of Taranaki District Health Board. All 

financial information presented in New Zealand dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand ($'000) unless stated otherwise.

 (ii) Use of estimates and judgements
 In preparing these financial statements Taranaki District Health Board has made estimates and assumptions concerning the future. 

These estimates and assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual results. Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated 
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

 Allowance for impairment loss on trade receivables (note 8)

 A monthly assessment of non commercial debtors is made, with an impairment allowance being provided for based on the age of 
these debts. In June of each year all non commercial debts that are aged over 12 months that are not being paid off by the debtor is 
written off. Refer to note 8 for the amount per year of non commercial debt after the impairment allowance.

 Fair value of buildings

 Taranaki District Health Board revalues land and buildings on either a five year cycle or when there is a material (10% or over) 
change between the independent valuation and the carrying value of the land and buildings. The independent valuation also 
determines the remaining life of buildings, and therefore the annual depreciation cost in future years. 



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2011

page 51

 An incorrect estimate of the useful life or residual value will impact on the depreciable amount of an asset, thereby impacting on the 
depreciation expense recognised in the statement of financial performance, and carrying amount of the asset in the statement of 
financial position.

 The carrying amounts of land and buildings are disclosed in note 14.

(c) Basis of consolidation

 Subsidiaries
 Subsidiaries are all those entities over which Taranaki District Health Board has the power to govern the financial and operating 

policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable or 
convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from 
the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

 The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as Taranaki District Health Board, using 
consistent accounting policies. 

 In preparing consolidated financial statements, all intercompany balances and transactions, income and expenses and profit and losses 
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.

 Taranaki District Health Board held a 100% shareholding in HIQ Limited as at 30 June 2011.

 Associates
 An associate is an entity over which Taranaki District Health Board has significant influence, but not control. Taranaki District Health 

Board has shareholdings in the following associates:

           Fulford Radiology Services Limited 50% held

           Allied Laundry Services Limited 25% held

           HealthShare Limited 20% held

 Taranaki District Health Board accounts for an investment in an associate in the group financial statements using the equity method, 
from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases. The investment in an associate is 
initially recognised at cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise Taranaki District Health Board’s share of 
the surplus or deficit of the associate after the date of acquisition. Taranaki District Health Board’s share of the surplus or deficit of 
the associate is recognised in Taranaki District Health Board’s income statement. Distributions received from an associate reduce 
the carrying amount of the investment. If Taranaki District Health Board’s share of losses exceed its interest in an associate, Taranaki 
District Health Board’s carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that 
Taranaki District Health Board has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of an associate.

(d) Budget figures
 The budget figures are those approved by Taranaki District Health Board in its District Annual Plan and included in the Statement of 

Intent tabled in Parliament. The budget figures have been prepared using accounting policies that are consistent with those adopted 
by Taranaki District Health Board for the preparation of the financial statements. 

(e) Revenue
 Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable to the extent it is probable that the 

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must 
also be met before the revenue is recognised:
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 (i) Health and disability services (MoH contracted revenue)
 The majority of revenue earned is related to the provision of services associated with planning, funding and the provision of 

health services and disability services. This revenue is provided through an appropriation in association with a Crown Funding 
Agreement. Revenue is recognised monthly in accordance with the Crown Funding Agreement payment schedule, which allocates the 
appropriation equally throughout the year.

 (ii) ACC revenue
 Taranaki District Health Board has a number of contracts with the Accident Compensation Corporation. Revenue on these 

contracts is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Taranaki District Health Board, and this revenue 
can be reliably measured.

 (iii) Inter district patient inflows
 Inter district patient inflow revenue occurs when a patient treated within the Taranaki District Health Board region is domiciled 

outside of Taranaki. The Ministry of Health credits Taranaki District Health Board with a budgeted monthly amount based on 
expected patient treatment for non Taranaki residents within Taranaki. An annual wash up occurs to reflect the actual non Taranaki 
patients treated at Taranaki.

 (iv) Interest received
 Revenue is recognised using the effective interest method.

 (v) Dividends received
 Revenue is recognised when the right to receive payment has been established.

 (vi) Sale of goods
 Revenue from goods sold is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer 

and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. Risks and rewards of ownership are 
considered passed to the buyer at the time of delivery of the goods to the customer.

 (vii) Rental revenue
 Revenue is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

 (viii) Donation revenue
  Donations and bequests to Taranaki District Health Board are recognised as revenue when control over assets is obtained. 

Donations and bequests received are treated as revenue on receipt in the statement of comprehensive income. Those with 
restrictive conditions are subsequently appropriated to trust funds forming part of equity.

 (f) Cash and cash equivalents 
  Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash in hand, cash at bank, deposits held with an original maturity of three 

months or less.

  Any bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of Taranaki District Health Board's cash management 
are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

 (g) Trade and other receivables
  Trade and other receivables are stated at amortised cost.

  Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are known to be uncollectible are written off when 
identified.  An allowance for impairment losses is made on a percentage basis against the age of debts greater than 30 days.  At year 
end all debts that are over 365 days are written off against the provision for bad debts, the exception being where an invoice is 
currently being paid off by instalment.
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 (h) Inventories
  Inventories are valued at the lower of cost, determined at weighted average value, and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the 

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. 

 (i) Non-current Assets held for sale
  Non-current assets held for sale are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale 

transaction, not through continuing use. Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair 
value less costs to sell. They are not depreciated or amortised. For an asset or disposal group to be classified as held for sale, it must 
be available for immediate sale in its present condition and its sale must be highly probable.

  Any impairment losses for write-downs of non-current assets held for sale are recognised in the income statement.

  Any increases in fair value (less costs to sell) are recognised up to the level of any impairment losses that have been previously 
recognised.

 (j) Investments and Other Financial Assets
  Financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs unless they are carried at fair value through profit or loss in 

which case the transaction costs are recognised in the income statement.

  Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-date, the date on which Taranaki District Health Board commits to 
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have 
expired, or have been transferred and Taranaki District Health Board has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership.

  The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at balance date. The fair value 
of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques include: 
using arm's length market transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument that is substantially the same; 
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

  Taranaki District Health Board classifies its financial assets into the following category. Management determines the classification of 
its investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

  Loans and receivables
  Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 

market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or 
loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired.

 (k) Property, Plant and Equipment

  Owned assets
  Except for land and buildings, items of property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less any accumulated depreciation 

and any accumulated impairment losses. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial 
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and an 
appropriate proportion of direct overheads.

  Leased assets
  Leases where Taranaki District Health Board assumes substantially all of the risks and benefits incident to ownership of the leased 

item, are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset at the inception of the lease, or the present value of the 
minimum lease payments.
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  Land and buildings revalued
  Land and buildings were revalued as at 30 June 2008 by an independent valuer on the basis of fair value.  Changes in valuations are 

transferred to an asset revaluation reserve for that class of asset.  Where such transfer results in a debit balance in the revaluation 
reserve the deficit is transferred to the income statement.  Any subsequent revaluation gains are written back through the income 
statement only to the extent of past deficits written off.  Land and buildings are revalued every five years with the next revaluation 
due as at 30th June 2013, unless the value of land and buildings materially alter prior to that date.

  Additions
  The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable the future economic 

benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to Taranaki District Health Board and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. In most instances, an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised at its cost. 

  Subsequent costs
  Subsequent costs are added to the carrying value of an item of property, plant and equipment when that cost is incurred if it is 

probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to Taranaki District Health Board and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably. All other costs are recognised in the income statement an expense as incurred.

  Disposals
  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic benefits are expected 

from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

  Depreciation
  Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis on all tangible property, plant and equipment other than freehold land, at rates 

which will write off the cost or valuation of the assets, less estimated residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

      

  Capitalised leases are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated life of the asset and the lease term if there is no reasonable 
certainty that Taranaki District Health Board will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

  Class of Asset Estimated life Depreciation rate
  Land  not depreciated n/a

  Buildings 4 to 33 years 3-22.5%

  Plant and equipment 2 to 18 years 5.5-48%

  Motor vehicles 3 to 10 years 10-33.3%

(l) Finance Leases
 The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an 

assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement 
conveys a right to use the asset.

 Finance leases, which transfer to Taranaki District Health Board substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the 
leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the 
minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to 
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as an expense in profit or 
loss.

(m) Operating Leases
 Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
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(n) Trade and Other Payables
 Trade payables and other payables are carried at amortised cost. They represent liabilities for goods and services provided to 

Taranaki District Health Board prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when Taranaki District Health Board 
becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of these goods and services. The amounts are unsecured and generally paid 
within 30 days of recognition. 

(o) Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings
 All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less transaction costs.  After initial recognition, all borrowings are 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred.

 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless Taranaki District Health Board has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 
the liability for at least 12 months after balance date.

(p) Employee Leave Benefits

 Short-term benefits
 Employee benefits that Taranaki District Health Board expects to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at 

nominal values based on accrued entitlements at current rates of pay. 

 These include (i) salaries and wages accrued up to balance date, (ii) annual leave earned to, but not yet taken at balance date, (iii) 
continuing medical education, (iv) retiring and long-service leave entitlements (v) sabbatical leave expecting to be settled within 12 
months, and (vi) sick leave.  Taranaki District Health Board recognises a liability for sick leave. The amount is calculated based on 
the unused sick leave entitlement that can be carried forward at balance date, to the extent that Taranaki District Health Board 
anticipates it will be used by staff to cover those future absences.

 Long-term benefits
 Entitlements that are payable beyond 12 months are calculated and included here.

 Long service leave and retirement gratuities is calculated based on the probability of long service leave being liable after employees 
achieve certain service periods.

 Sabbatical leave is calculated based on employee entitlements to this leave against what has been used historically. 

(q) Provisions
 Taranaki District Health Board recognises a provision for future expenditure of uncertain amount or timing when there is a present 

obligation (either legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that expenditures will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

 ACC Partnership Program
 Taranaki District Health Board belongs to the ACC Partnership Program whereby Taranaki District Health Board accepts the 

management and financial responsibility of work related illnesses and accidents of employees. Under the ACC Partnership Program 
Taranaki District Health Board is effectively providing accident insurance to employees and this is accounted for as an insurance 
contract. The value of this liability represents the expected future payments in relation to accidents and illnesses occurring up to 
balance date for which Taranaki District Health Board has responsibility under the terms of the Partnership Program. The liability for 
claims reported prior to balance date has been determined by an assessment from Taranaki District Health Board's workplace claims 
provider.
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(r) Income Tax
 Taranaki District Health Board is a public authority under the New Zealand Public Health and Disability Act 2000 and is exempt 

from income tax under Section CB3 of the Income Tax Act 1994.

(s) Goods and Services Tax (GST)
 The Financial Statements have been prepared exclusive of goods and services tax (GST) apart from receivables and payables which 

are stated inclusive of GST.  Where GST is irrecoverable as an input tax then it is recognised as part of the related asset or expense.

 The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland Revenue Department is included as part of receivables or 
payables in the balance sheet.

 The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and financing activities, is classified as an 
operating cash flow in the statement of cash flows.

 Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST.

(t) New standards adopted and interpretations not yet adopted

 (i) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
 There have been no changes in accounting policies during the year.

 (ii) Standards, amendments, and interpretaions issued that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted
 NZ IFRS standards, amendments, and interpretations issued but not yet effective that have not been early adopted, and which are 

relevant to Taranaki District Health Board, are:

 

 NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
 will eventually replace NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. NZ IAS 39 is being replaced through the 

following main phases: Phase 1 Classification and Measurement, Phase 2 Impairment Methodology, and Phase 3 Hedge Accounting. 
Phase 1 has been completed and has been published in the new financial instrument standard NZ IFRS 9. NZ IFRS 9 uses a single 
approach to determine whether a financial asset is measured at amortised cost or fair value, replacing the many different rules 
in NZ IAS 39. The approach in NZ IFRS 9 is based on how an entity manages its financial assets and the contractual cash flow 
characteristics of the financial assets. The financial liability requirements are the same as those of NZ IAS 39, except for when an 
entity elects to designate a financial liability at fair value through the surplus or deficit.  The new standard is required to be adopted 
for the year ended 30 June 2014. Taranaki District Health Board has not yet assessed the effect of the new standard and expects it 
will not be early adopted.

 FRS-44 New Zealand Additional Disclosures and Amendments
 to NZ IFRS to harmonise with IFRS and Australian Accounting Standards (Harmonisation Amendments) - These were issued in May 

2011 with the purpose of harmonising Australia and New Zealand's accounting standards with source IFRS and to eliminate many of 
the differences between the accounting standards in each jurisdiction. The amendments must first be adopted for the year ended 30 
June 2012. Taranaki District Health Board has not yet assessed the effects of FRS-44 and the Harmonisation Amendments.



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2011

page 57

1 REVENUE Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Health and disability services (MoH contracted revenue)      295,015      286,705      294,954      286,611 

ACC revenue          6,592          8,400          6,592          8,400 

Inter District Patient Inflows          5,110          4,137          5,110          4,137 

Interest received          2,087          1,870          2,080          1,866 

Dividends received                2                1                2                1 

Bad debts recovered                7                6                7                6 

Other revenue          2,906          3,829          2,511          3,156 

     311,719      304,948      311,256      304,177 

2 OTHER INCOME Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Donations and bequests received              25            831              25            831 

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment              36                4              36                4 

             61            835              61            835 

3 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Wages and salaries      100,788        98,660        97,512        96,014 

Increase/(Decrease) in employee benefits provisions          1,006          1,203            981            914 

     101,794        99,863        98,493        96,928 

4 OTHER EXPENSES Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Impairment of trade receivables (bad and doubtful debts)              70              51              70              51 

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment                3            206                3            206 

Audit fees - Ernst & Young (for the audit of the annual financial statements)            216            205            189            181 

Audit fees - Verification New Zealand Limited (ACC partnership plan)                1                3                1                3 

Audit fees - Healthshare Limited (Pharmacy Quality Audits)              30              21              30              21 

Board members fees            236            220            221            220 

Operating lease expenses            766            807            296            341 

         1,322          1,513            810          1,023 

5 CAPITAL CHARGE
District Health Boards are required to pay a capital charge to the Crown based on the greater of its actual or budgeted closing equity at year end, less 
adjustments for donated assets. The capital charge rate for the period ended 30 June 2011 was 8% (2010: 8%).
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6 FINANCING COSTS Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Interest on bank overdraft              11                4              11                4 

Finance charges payable under finance leases              22              54              22              54 

Interest on loans - Crown Health Financing Agency          1,981          1,989          1,981          1,989 

         2,014          2,047          2,014          2,047 

7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Cash at bank and in hand          3,069          2,825          2,849          2,776 

Short-term deposits maturing within 3 months of acquisition               -                 -                 -                 -   

Cash and cash equivalents          3,069          2,825          2,849          2,776 

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents represent fair value.

8 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Ministry of Health          4,871          4,792          4,871          4,792 

Due from subsidiaries                1               -                  1              84 

Due from associates            100            202            100            202 

Due from non-related parties          3,553          2,602          3,487          2,500 

Prepayments            320            363            108              68 

         8,845          7,959          8,567          7,646 

Allowance for impairment loss (a)             (54)             (38)             (54)             (38)

Carrying amount of trade and other receivables          8,791          7,921          8,513          7,608 

(a) Allowance for Impairment Loss

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 20th of month following invoice. An allowance for impairment is calculated on 
non commercial debt based on the balance in age bands of the debts as follows: over 30 days (10%), over 60 days (50%), over 90 days (50%).

Movements in the allowance for impairment loss were as follows: Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

At 1 July              38              36              38              36 

Charge for the year              70              51              70              51 

Amounts written off             (54)             (49)             (54)             (49)

At 30 June              54              38              54              38 
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Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Total non commercial debt            191            180            191            180 

Non commercial debt with no impairment allowance            137            142            137            142 

Other balances within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not past due.  It is expected that these other balances will be 
received when due.

As at 30 June 2011 and 2010, all overdue receivables have been assessed for impairment and appropriate provisions applied, as detailed below:

Actual Actual

2011 2011 2010 2010

Gross Impairment Gross Impairment

$000 $000 $000 $000

Taranaki District Health Board Parent

Not past due          8,037               -            7,262               -   

Past due 1 - 60 days            368               (5)              89               (1)

Past due 61 - 90 days              50             (13)              15               (5)

Past due > 90 days            112             (36)            280             (32)

         8,567             (54)          7,646             (38)

Taranaki District Health Board Group

Not past due          8,281               -            7,539               -   

Past due 1 - 60 days            378               (5)              93               (1)

Past due 61 - 90 days              42             (13)              15               (5)

Past due > 90 days            144             (36)            312             (32)

         8,845             (54)          7,959             (38)

(b) Related Party Receivables

For specific amounts owing from related parties, including associate companies refer to note 21.

(c) Credit Risk and Effective Interest Rate Risk

Details regarding the credit risk and effective interest rate of current receivables is disclosed in note 24.

INVENTORIES Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Pharmaceuticals            556            583            556            583 

Surgical and Medical Supplies          1,550          1,438          1,550          1,438 

Other Supplies            522            553            522            553 

         2,628          2,574          2,628          2,574 

Write-down of inventories amounted to $35k for 2011 (2010 $67k).

No inventories are pledged as security for liabilities. 
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10 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Current portion

Loan - Allied Laundry Services Limited              10              55              10              55 

Short-term deposits with maturities of 3-12 months        31,000        31,000        31,000        31,000 

       31,010        31,055        31,010        31,055 

Non-current portion

Loan - Allied Laundry Services Limited               -                10               -                10 

Shares in King Country Energy Limited                1                1                1                1 

Shares in Pharmacy Wholesalers Limited              56              56              56              56 

             57              67              57              67 

11 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Surplus Investment Property held for Sale               -                 -                 -                 -   

12 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANY Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

Investment details $000 $000 $000 $000

HIQ Limited unlisted ordinary shares               -                 -            4,936          4,936 

              -                 -            4,936          4,936 

The principal activity of the subsidiary is the provision of IT services.

13 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE COMPANIES Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

(a) Investment details $000 $000 $000 $000

HealthShare Limited               -                 -                 -                 -   

Allied Laundry Services Limited unlisted ordinary shares            750            750            750            750 

Allied Laundry Services Limited Share of Retained Earnings              51               -                 -                 -   

Fulford Radiology Services Limited unlisted ordinary shares            401            201            401            201 

Fulford Radiology Services Limited Share of Accumulated Deficit           (584)           (637)               -                 -   

Fulford Radiology Services Limited loan to purchase assets            300            500            300            500 

           918            814          1,451          1,451 

There is no intention to seek repayment of the Fulford Radiology Services Limited loan of $300k (2010: $500k). On the 1st July 2010 $200k of the loan 
to Fulford Radiology Services Limited was converted to Equity.
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Details of each Associate Company are as follows:  Balance 
date 

 Interest 
held at 
30 June 

2011 

 Interest 
held at 
30 June 

2010 

HealthShare Limited 30 June 20% 20%

The principal activity of the associate is the provision of contract processing and auditing services for the 5 Midland Region District Health Board's.

Fulford Radiology Services Limited 30 June 50% 50%

The principal activity of the associate is the provision of radiology services.

Allied Laundry Services Limited 30 June 25% 25%

The principal activity of the associate is the provision of laundry services.

(b) Summary of financial information of associate companies (100%)

Summarised unaudited financial information - 2011: Assets Liabilities Equity Revenues Profit/(loss)

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Healthshare Limited            453            266            187          1,395             (67)

Fulford Radiology Services Limited          2,547          2,345            202        10,881            568 

Allied Laundry Services Limited          4,982          1,624          3,358          6,261            154 

         7,982          4,235          3,747        18,537            655 

Summarised audited financial information - 2010: Assets Liabilities Equity Revenues Profit/(loss)

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Healthshare Limited (unaudited)            568            314            254          1,681              20 

Fulford Radiology Services Limited          2,939          3,706           (767)        10,744            105 

Allied Laundry Services Limited          5,109          1,905          3,204          6,418            204 

         8,616          5,925          2,691        18,843            329 

The above information has been extracted from the associate companies unaudited management accounts (2011) and audited financial statements (2010). 



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2011

(c) Movements in the carrying value of investments in associates: Group

2011 2010

$000 $000

Balance at 1 July            814          
5,938 

New investments during the year                 -                 - 
Share of total recognised revenues and expenses            104           

(196)
Transfer of Investment to Subsidiary                 -        

(4,928)
Balance at 30 June            918            814 

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Freehold 
Land

Freehold 
Buildings

Plant and 
Equipment

Motor 
Vehicles

Leased 
Motor 

Vehicles

Work in 
Progress Total

Year ended 30 June 2011

Cost/revaluation 30-Jun-10          7,890        77,388        37,113 2,531 1,124        14,109      140,155 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment charges 30-Jun-10               -        (11,369)      (26,524) (1,957) (638)               -   (40,488)

Carrying amount 30-Jun-10          7,890        66,019        10,589            574            486        14,109 99,667 

Current year additions               -            1,651          4,447               -                 -            5,808 11,906 

Current year revaluations               -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -   

Current year disposals               -                 -             (109) (21) (393)               -   (523)

Current year impairment charges               -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -   

Current year depreciation               -          (5,707)        (3,033) (355) (93)               -   (9,188)

Accumulated depreciation reversed on revaluation               -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -   

At 30 June 2011 net of accumulated depreciation and impairment          7,890        61,963        11,894            198               -          19,917      101,862 

At 30 June 2011

Cost or fair value          7,890        79,040        40,886 2,362               -          19,917      150,095 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment               -        (17,077)      (28,992) (2,164)               -                 -   (48,233)

         7,890        61,963        11,894            198               -          19,917      101,862 

Freehold 
Land

Freehold 
Buildings

Plant and 
Equipment

Motor 
Vehicles

Leased 
Motor 

Vehicles

Work in 
Progress Total

Year ended 30 June 2010

Cost/revaluation 30-Jun-09          8,588        77,678        29,905 2,840 1,009          1,374      121,394 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment charges 30-Jun-09               -          (5,678)      (22,453) (1,843) (362)               -   (30,336)

Carrying amount 30-Jun-09          8,588        72,000          7,452            997            647          1,374 91,058 

Current year additions               -                36          6,109              28            116        12,735 19,024 

Current year revaluations               -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -   

Current year disposals           (698)           (311)                1               
(9)               -                 -   (1,017)

Current year impairment charges               -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -   

Current year depreciation               -          (5,706)        (2,973) (442) (277)               -   (9,398)

Accumulated depreciation reversed on revaluation               -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -   

At 30 June 2010 net of accumulated depreciation and impairment          7,890        66,019        10,589            574            486        14,109 99,667 
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Freehold 
Land

Freehold 
Buildings

Plant and 
Equipment

Motor 
Vehicles

Leased 
Motor 

Vehicles

Work in 
Progress Total

At 30 June 2010

Cost or fair value          7,890        77,388        37,113 2,531 1,124        14,109      140,155 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment               -        (11,369)      (26,524) (1,957) (638)               -   (40,488)

         7,890        66,019        10,589            574            486        14,109 99,667 

Restrictions

Taranaki District Health Board does not have full title to Crown land it occupies but transfer is arranged if and when land is sold. Some of the land may be 
subject to Waitangi Tribunal claims. The disposal of certain properties may be subject to the provision of section 40 of the Public Works Act 1981.

Titles to land transferred from the Crown to Taranaki District Health Board may be subject to claims under the terms of the Treaty of Waitangi Act 1975 (as 
amended by the Treaty of Waitangi (State Enterprises) Act 1988). The Board is of the view that the effect on the value of assets resulting from potential claims 
under the Treaty of Waitangi Act 1975 is not significant.

Valuation

Land and buildings were independently valued as at 30th June 2008 by Ian D. Baker ANZIV, SNZPI, registered valuer Telfer Young (Taranaki) Limited.

The valuation process was undertaken in accordance with guidelines and recommendations contained within the New Zealand Property Institute (NZPI) 
Valuation Standard VS-3, the Accounting Standard NZ IAS 16 as issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of New Zealand (ICANZ), and valuation 
guidelines for specialised items in the Health sector issued by Treasury.

Land has been valued at fair value on the basis of highest and best use.  Consideration has been given to the open market value of the land, but acknowledging 
any steps that would be required to prepare it for sale.

Buildings have been valued on an Optimised Depreciated Replacement Cost (ODRC) basis as they are specialised in nature. Optimisation has been applied for 
obsolescence and relevant surplus capacity, and has been considered as part of the valuation process for buildings.
ODRC is a method to arrive at an alternative where there is no market value for specialised properties. It is commonly applied to the valuation of property 
where there is no active market.
The ODRC approach has included assessment of recent contracts carried out in the market, reference materials supplied by Rawlinsons (quantity surveying 
business), referral to the building, as well as knowledge of the construction market and the type and nature of the buildings.

Impairment

The assessment of assets indicated no impairment for the year ended 30th June 2011 (2010; Nil).

Leased assets

Taranaki District Health Board previously leased ambulances under a number of finance lease agreements. On 01 February 2011, all ambulance vehicle leases 
were assigned to the Order of St John as part of the exit of ambulance services.
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15 RESTRICTED ASSETS AND TRUST FUNDS
Restricted assets are funds donated and bequeathed for specific purposes. The use of these  assets must comply with the specific terms of the sources 
from which the funds were derived. 

Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Opening Balance            681            723               -                 -   

Funds Received              89              44               -                 -   

Interest Received              36              47               -                 -   

Funds Spent             (82)           (133)               -                 -   

Closing Balance Restricted Assets            724            681               -                 -   

Represented By:

Cash at Bank              25                3               -                 -   

Short Term Deposits            699            678               -                 -   

Shares & Other               -                 -                 -                 -   

Total Restricted Assets            724            681               -                 -   

      

16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Trade Payables        20,205        20,109        18,486        18,256 

Capital Charge Payable          3,322          2,572          3,322          2,572 

Income received in advance          1,329          1,291          1,329          1,291 

Interest Payable            395            398            395            398 

Current Account with Subsidiary Company               -                 -            6,583          6,809 

Owing to Associates            742            688            742            688 

Other Related Parties            730          1,024            730          1,024 

       26,723        26,082        31,587        31,038 

Most trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and normally settled by the 20th of the month following service or delivery of goods. The 
exception is capital charge paid to the Ministry of Health, and interest paid to the Crown Health Financing Agency. Capital charges are paid quarterly 
in arrears, on a July, October, January and April cycle. Interest paid to the Crown Health Financing Agency on term loans is paid either on a three or six 
monthly cycle.

The current account balance is related to HIQ Limited. This is partially offset by the investment of Taranaki District Health Board in HIQ Limited. HIQ 
Limited will not be seeking repayment from Taranaki District Health Board.
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17 INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Finance Lease Liability               -              526               -              526 

Government Sector Borrowing        29,000        29,000        29,000        29,000 

Total Loans        29,000        29,526        29,000        29,526 

Less Current Portion        10,000            273        10,000            273 

Term Portion        19,000        29,253        19,000        29,253 

INTEREST RATES: 2011 2010

Government Sector Borrowing  6.30% - 7.32%  6.30% - 7.32% 

ANALYSIS OF FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Total minimum lease payments are payable

Not later than one year               -              273               -              273 

Later than one year and not later than five years               -              312               -              312 

Later than five years               -                 -                 -                 -   

Total minimum lease payments               -              585               -              585 

Future finance charges               -               (59)               -               (59)

Present value of minimum lease payments               -              526               -              526 

Present value of minimum lease payments are payable

Not later than one year               -              239               -              239 

Later than one year and not later than five years               -              287               -              287 

Later than five years               -                 -                 -                 -   

Total               -              526               -              526 

Current               -              239               -              239 

Non-current               -              287               -              287 

              -              526               -              526 

FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS  
Finance lease obligations are secured by charges over plant and equipment. They are repaid over the duration of the lease by regular monthly or 
quarterly instalments. The majority of these leases have the option at the expiry of the original term to either return the equipment, extend the lease 
period or purchase the equipment at Fair Market Value.

Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

GOVERNMENT SECTOR BORROWING $000 $000 $000 $000

        Due for repayment:

        within one year        10,000               -          10,000               -   

        within two years          7,000        10,000          7,000        10,000 

        within three years               -            7,000               -            7,000 

        within four years        12,000               -          12,000               -   

        within five years               -          12,000               -          12,000 

        after five years               -                 -                 -                 -   

       29,000        29,000        29,000        29,000 
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The term loans denoted are financed by the Crown Health Financing Agency (acting as an agent of the Crown) on fixed interest rates. The rate of 
interest has two components - a fixed rate and a margin. The margin may decrease on account of efficiencies derived by the Crown Health Financing 
Agency and passed onto the Taranaki District Health Board, whilst any increase in the margin will be capped and cannot exceed the original margin 
agreed at the time of the loan drawdown. Since these loans have no fixed repayment date the Crown Health Financing Agency have not passed any 
efficiencies onto Taranaki District Health Board.

Government sector borrowings are unsecured and repayment is classified in line with the terms of borrowing with the Crown Health Financing Agency.

Subsequent to 30 June 2011 a loan on a fixed rate of interest totalling $10 million and due to mature on 31 July 2011 has been refinanced at a fixed 
rate of interest of 4.44% to expire on 15 April 2016.  

Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

GOVERNMENT SECTOR BORROWING $000 $000 $000 $000

(post refinancing)

        Due for repayment:

        within one year               -                 -                 -                 -   

        within two years          7,000        10,000          7,000        10,000 

        within three years               -            7,000               -            7,000 

        within four years        12,000               -          12,000               -   

        within five years        10,000        12,000        10,000        12,000 

        after five years               -                 -                 -                 -   

       29,000        29,000        29,000        29,000 

FAIR VALUE OF GOVERNMENT BORROWING
The fair value of the $29,000k of Government Borrowing at  30th June 2011 was calculated at $31,118k (2010: $31,362k). This calculation is done by 
discounting the expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates. Crown Health Financing Agency has used the Government Bond Rate plus 15 
basis points based on mid market pricing, this being the same basis on which District Health Board debt is funded, to establish the fair value.

18 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Salary & wages accrual          3,583          3,295          3,472          3,204 

Annual Leave        11,741        11,172        11,426        10,882 

Sick Leave            322            364            322            364 

Long Service Leave          1,044            919          1,044            919 

Retirement gratuities          1,026            928          1,026            928 

Continuing Medical Education          1,388          1,141          1,388          1,141 

Sabbatical Leave            214            205            214            205 

       19,318        18,024        18,892        17,643 

Made up of:

Current        18,509        17,237        18,083        16,856 

Non-current            809            787            809            787 

       19,318        18,024        18,892        17,643 
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19 PROVISIONS Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Current provisions

ACC Partnership Programme                4              12                4              12 

               4              12                4              12 

The liability valuation on the ACC Partnership Program has been calculated by Aon New Zealand Limited as at the 30th June 2011. All outstanding 
claims by Taranaki District Health Board's employees are estimated by claim managers as at this point.

20 RECONCILIATION OF NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) AFTER TAXATION Group Parent

WITH CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Net Surplus/(Loss)          1,499        (2,992)          1,353        (2,755)

Add/(Less) Non-Cash Items:

Depreciation          9,188          9,398          9,188          9,398 

(Decrease)/Increase in Provision for Doubtful Debts              16                2              16                2 

(Decrease)/Increase in Employee Entitlements          1,294           (259)          1,249           (640)

       10,498          9,141        10,453          8,760 

Add back items classified as investment/financing activities:

Decrease/(Increase) in Investments Held           (103)            174               -               (22)

Net Loss/(Gain) of Disposal of Assets             (34)            202             (34)            202 

          (137)            376             (34)            180 

Add/(Less) Movements in Working Capital:

(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables & Prepayments           (886)           (436)           (921)           (122)

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories             (55)             (47)             (55)             (47)

(Decrease)/Increase in Payables & Accruals net of acquired balances            629          1,075            538          1,094 

          (312)            592           (438)            925 

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities        11,548          7,117        11,334          7,110 

            

21 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Taranaki District Health Board is a wholly owned entity of the Crown. The Government significantly influences the role of the Board as well as being its 
major source of revenue.

Taranaki District Health Board enters into numerous transactions with government departments and other Crown agencies outside of the funding 
relationship. Where these parties are acting in the course of their normal dealings with Taranaki District Health Board, related party disclosures have 
not been made for transactions of this nature.

Related Party Transactions and Balances

(a) Funding
Taranaki District Health Board received $295m from the Ministry of Health to provide health services to the Taranaki area (2010: $287m). The amount 
outstanding at year end was $4.87m (2010: $4.79m).
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(b) Inter-Group Transactions and balances:
Taranaki District Health Board charged the following expenses during the year for services performed, administration, rental, general facility services, 
and interest received and had the following balances at year end:

Parent
Owed to TDHB

Parent
Income to TDHB

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Allied Laundry Services Limited                2                2              21              25 

Fulford Radiology Services Limited              39            200            314            344 

Healthshare Limited               -                 -                 -                 -   

HIQ Limited                1              84            506            464 

             42            286            841            833 

Taranaki District Health Board incurred the following expenses during the year for services performed and had the following outstanding balances at 
year end:

Parent
Owed by TDHB

Parent
Expense to TDHB

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Allied Laundry Services Limited            118            112            996            840 

Fulford Radiology Services Limited            624            577          7,441          7,051 

Healthshare Limited               -                 -              110              97 

HIQ Limited               -                 -            3,736          2,544 

           742            689        12,283        10,532 

Board Member Fees paid to Board Members of the above Subsidiaries & Associates are included in the Annual Report under Board Fees.
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Board Members and Key Management - 2011

TDHB Board Member Related Party Relationship TDHB Transaction
Expense for 
Year 30 June 

2011

Owed by 
TDHB at 30 

June 2011

 $000  $000 

Alex Ballantyne Peak Health Local Management Group 
Member GP and Health Services 3,114

TSB Community Trust Member Community Funding

STDC Councillor Local Authority 12

Ella Borrows South Taranaki Medical Trust Member GP and Health Services

Mary Bourke TSB Community Trust Member Community Funding

Bishops Action Foundation Member Community and Health 
Projects

WITT Polytechnic Chairperson Training organisation 4

Lotteries Community Grant 
Committee Member Community Funding

New Families Interim Trust Member Community and Health 
Projects

South Taranaki Medical Trust Former Chair GP and Health Services

Peter Catt Family Health Care Centre GP and Shareholder GP and Health Services 8

Taranaki Sub Faculty RNZCGP Secretary Treasurer

Workforce Development 
Group Member

HIQ Ltd Director Information Technology 
Provider 3,736

Kura Denness Hauora Taranaki PHO 
(Taranaki PHO Ltd) Chairperson GP and Health Services 2,509

Midland Regional Health 
Network GP and Health Services 13,993 218

Tui Ora Ltd Chairperson Health Services 5,444 457

Massey University Council Member Education Provider

Te Aroha MedCare Chairperson GP and Health Services 17

Pharmac Director DHB Funding 79

Te Matai Whetu Ltd Personal

MidCentral Zone Rugby 
League Chairperson TDHB Funding of Smokefree 

Programme for League Club 30 18

Allied Laundry Services Director Supplier of Laundry Services 996 118

Bayley Road Trust Trustee

Karen Eagles Govett Quilliam Husband Senior Partner Legal rep of TDHB 50

Plunket NZ National Councillor

Flora Gilkison Taranaki DHB Husband employed as surgeon

Fulford Radiology Services Director Supplier of Radiology Services 7,441 624

Brian Jeffares Stratford Health Trust Member GP and Health Services

Taranaki Electricity Trust Member Community Funding
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TDHB Board Member Related Party Relationship TDHB Transaction
Expense for 
Year 30 June 

2011

Owed by 
TDHB at 30 

June 2011

Pauline Lockett New Plymouth District 
Council Member Local Authority 471

Tui Ora Contractor to Health Services 5,444 457

Alison Rumball Taranaki Cancer Society Member Health Services 70 6

Colleen Tuuta TSB Community Trust Community Funding

Tui Ora Ltd Health Services 5,444 457

Former TDHB Board 
Members Related Party Relationship TDHB Transaction

Expense for 
Year 30 June 

2011

Owed by 
TDHB at 30 

June 2011

 $000  $000 

Dan Devadhar Independent Health Advocate

(former member) ACC Advocate

Grant Knuckey Te Atiawa Medical Trust CEO GP and Health Services 207 17

(former member) Te Tihi Hauora o Taranaki Chairman GP and Health Services 1,326 14

Health Aotearoa Executive Member

Bayley Road Trust Trustee

Jenny Nager Mary Ann Rest Home Stratford Daughter in Law is an 
employee TDHB Funds services

(former member) Grey Power South Taranaki Secretary

Tony Ruakere Te Atiawa Medical Centre Employee/General Practitioner GP and Health Services 207 17

(former member) Te Pou Heretaunga Disability 
Committee of Tui Ora 

Member Health and Disability Services 5,444 457
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Board Members and Key Management - 2010

TDHB Board 
Member Related Party Relationship TDHB Transaction

Expense 
for Year 30 
June 2010

Owed by 
TDHB at 30 

June 2010

$000 $000 

Alex Ballantyne Peak Health Local Management Group Member GP and Health Services 11,112 389

TSB Community Trust Member Community Funding

STDC Councillor Local Authority 12

Mary Bourke TSB Community Trust Member Community Funding

Bishops Action Foundation Member Community and Health 
Projects

WITT Polytechnic Chairperson Training organisation 16

Peter Catt Family Health Care Centre GP and Shareholder GP and Health Services 7

Taranaki Sub Faculty RNZCGP Secretary Treasurer

Workforce Development Group Member

Kura Denness Hauora Taranaki PHO (Taranaki PHO 
Ltd) Chairperson GP and Health Services 9,195 81

Medical Laboratory Scientists Board Director

Medical Science Secretariat Ltd Director

Tui Ora Ltd Chairperson Health Services 5,106 440

Massey University Council Member Education Provider 4

Te Aroha MedCare Chairperson GP and Health Services 12 57

Pharmac Director DHB Funding

MidCentral Zone Rugby League Chairperson TDHB Funding of Smokefree 
Programme for League Club

Allied Laundry Services Director Supplier of Laundry Services 840 112

Bayley Road Trust Trustee

Karen Eagles Govett Quilliam Husband Senior Partner Legal rep of TDHB 60

Plunket NZ National Councillor

Flora Gilkison Taranaki DHB Husband employed as surgeon

Fulford Radiology Services Director Supplier of Radiology Services 7,051 577

Grant Knuckey Te Atiawa Medical Trust CEO GP and Health Services 209 20

Te Tihi Hauora o Taranaki Chairman GP and Health Services 1,940 95

Health Aotearoa Executive Member

Bayley Road Trust Trustee

Jenny Nager Mary Ann Rest Home Stratford Daughter in Law is an employee TDHB Funds services 1

Grey Power South Taranaki Secretary

Tony Ruakere Te Atiawa Medical Centre Employee/General Practitioner GP and Health Services 209 20

Te Pou Heretaunga Disability 
Committee of Tui Ora 

Member Health and Disability Services 5,106 440
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22 RELATED PARTIES - KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Compensation of key management personnel

Short-term employee benefits          1,977          1,899          1,977          1,899 

Post-employment benefits               -                 -                 -                 -   

Other long-term benefits               -                 -                 -                 -   

Termination benefits               -                 -                 -                 -   

         1,977          1,899          1,977          1,899 

Key management personnel include all board members and members of the executive management team.

23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT CATEGORIES

The carrying amounts of financial instruments in each of the NZ IAS 39 categories are 
as follows: Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

FINANCIAL ASSETS Note $000 $000 $000 $000

Loans and receivables

Cash and cash equivalents 7          3,069          2,825          2,849          2,776 

Debtors and other receivables 8          8,791          7,921          8,513          7,608 

Loans to associates 10              10              65              10              65 

Other investments 10              57              57              57              57 

Term deposits 10        31,000        31,000        31,000        31,000 

Restricted Assets and Trust Funds 15            724            681               -                 -   

Total loans and receivables        43,651        42,549        42,429        41,506 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES Note

Financial liabilities at amortised costs

Trade and other payables 16        25,394        24,791        30,258        29,747 

Finance lease liabilities 17               -              526               -              526 

Loans from Crown Health Financing Agency 17        29,000        29,000        29,000        29,000 

Total financial liabilities        54,394        54,317        59,258        59,273 

The fair value of all of the above financial instruments approximately equal their carrying value with the exception of loans from Crown Health 
Financing Agency.

The fair value of the $29,000k of loans from the Crown Health Financing Agency at 30th June 2011 was calculated at $31,118k (2010: $31,362k). 
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISKS

Taranaki District Health Board's activities expose it to a variety of financial instrument risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

(a) Market Risk

Fair value interest rate risk
Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Taranaki District 
Health Board's exposure to fair value interest rate risk is limited to its fixed interest borrowings and bank deposits. However, because these 
borrowings and bank deposits are not accounted for at fair value, fluctuations in interest rates do not have an impact on the surplus / deficit of Taranaki 
District Health Board or the carrying amount of the financial instruments recognised in the statement of financial position.

Cash flow interest rate risk
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 
Borrowings and investments issued at variable interest rates expose Taranaki District Health Board to cash flow interest rate risk.

Taranaki District Health Board deposits surplus funds with a spread of maturity dates to limit exposure to short term interest rate movements.

Taranaki District Health Board spreads the maturity of term borrowings to limit the exposure to short term interest rate movements.

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. Taranaki District Health Board 
is exposed to foreign currency risk on minor purchases for goods and services which require it to enter into transactions in foreign currencies. 
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate at the date of the transaction. As a result of this Taranaki District Health 
Board has limited exposure to currency risk.

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a 3rd party will default on its obligations to Taranaki District Health Board, causing a loss to be incurred.

Due to the timing of its cash inflows and outflows, Taranaki District Health Board invests surplus cash into term deposits with registered banks.

Taranaki District Health Board maximum credit exposure for each class of financial instrument is represented by the total carrying amount of cash 
equivalents (note 7), net debtors (note 8) and other financial assets (note 10).

Taranaki District Health Board has no significant concentrations of credit risk as government sourced revenue for Taranaki District Health Board was 
97% (2010: 97%) whilst it accounted for 96% (2010: 94%) of receivables.

(c) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that Taranaki District Health Board will encounter difficulty raising liquid funds to meet commitments as they fall due. Prudent 
liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through  an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and 
the ability to close out market positions.

In general, Taranaki District Health Board generates sufficient cash flows from its operating activities to meet its obligations arising from its financial 
liabilities and can break term deposits with financial institutions if required.
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(d) Contractual Liquidity Table

Group - 2011

The following table sets out the contractual cash flows for all financial liabilities:
Carrying 

value
Contractual 
Cash Flows 0-3 month 3-12 months 1-3 years 3-7 years

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 25,394 25,394 25,394 - - -

Finance leases - - -   - - -

Loans and borrowings 29,000 33,551 10,158 1,354 9,197 12,842

54,394 58,945 35,552 1,354 9,197 12,842 

Group - 2010

The following table sets out the contractual cash flows for all financial liabilities:
Carrying 

value
Contractual 
Cash Flows 0-3 month 3-12 months 1-3 years 3-7 years

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables        24,791        24,791        24,791               -                 -                 -   

Finance leases            526            585              68            205            273              39 

Loans and borrowings        29,000        35,537            158          1,827        19,867        13,685 

       54,317        60,913        25,017          2,032        20,140        13,724 

Parent - 2011

The following table sets out the contractual cash flows for all financial liabilities:
Carrying 

value
Contractual 
Cash Flows 0-3 month 3-12 months 1-3 years 3-7 years

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables        23,675        23,675        23,675               -                 -                 -   

Finance leases               -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -   

Loans and borrowings        29,000        33,551        10,158          1,354          9,197        12,842 

       52,675        57,226        33,833          1,354          9,197        12,842 

The current account balance to HIQ Limited is excluded from Trade and other payables. This is due to HIQ Limited not requiring repayment from Taranaki 
District Health Board.

Parent - 2010

The following table sets out the contractual cash flows for all financial liabilities:
Carrying 

value
Contractual 
Cash Flows

0-3 month 3-12 months 1-3 years 3-7 years

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables        22,938        22,938        22,938               -                 -                 -   

Finance leases            526            585              68            205            273              39 

Loans and borrowings        29,000        35,537            158          1,827        19,867        13,685 

       52,464        59,060        23,164          2,032        20,140        13,724 

The current account balance to HIQ Limited is excluded from Trade and other payables. This is due to HIQ Limited not requiring repayment from Taranaki 
District Health Board.

Subsequent to 30 June 2011: (i) a loan on a fixed rate of interest totalling $10 million and due to mature on 31 July 2011 has been refinanced at a fixed rate 
of interest of 4.44% to expire on 15 April 2016.  
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Group - 2011

The following table sets out the contractual cash flows for all financial liabilities (post refinancing):
Carrying 

value
Contractual 
Cash Flows 0-3 month 3-12 months 1-3 years 3-7 years

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables        25,394        25,394        25,394               -                 -                 -   

Finance leases               -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -   

Loans and borrowings        29,000        35,522               -            1,762        10,085        23,675 

       54,394        60,916        25,394          1,762        10,085        23,675 

Parent - 2011

The following table sets out the contractual cash flows for all financial liabilities (post refinancing):
Carrying 

value
Contractual 
Cash Flows 0-3 month 3-12 months 1-3 years 3-7 years

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables        23,675        23,675        23,675               -                 -                 -   

Finance leases               -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -   

Loans and borrowings        29,000        35,522               -            1,762        10,085        23,675 

       52,675        59,197        23,675          1,762        10,085        23,675 

(e) Sensitivity Analysis
In managing interest rate risk Taranaki District Health Board has adopted two strategies, (i) having term borrowings with the Crown Health Financing 
Agency on fixed rates, and (ii) having the maturity dates of the four individual loans to the Crown Health Financing Agency at different dates. Any 
increase in interest rates on a specific term loan when it matures and is rolled is therefore reduced, as only that specific loan is impacted.

As at 30 June 2011, if floating interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the surplus for the year 
would have been  $310k  higher/lower.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rate risk exposures in existence at the reporting date.

Judgements of reasonably possible movements

Consolidated and Parent Surplus for the 
period

Higher/(lower)

2011 2010

$000 $000

+1% (100 basis points)            310            310 

-1% (100 basis points)           (310)           (310)

25 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Taranaki District Health Board sometimes has claims that have been made by or against Taranaki District Health Board in the ordinary course of 
business. The Board Members do not consider the outcome of these claims will have a material adverse affect on the financial position of Taranaki 
District Health Board.
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26 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING LEASES Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Capital Commitments

Property, plant and equipment        52,051          6,568        52,051          6,568 

       52,051          6,568        52,051          6,568 

Operating leases as lessee
Taranaki District Health Board leases buildings, vehicles and equipment. These non-cancellable leases typically range from 3 to 5 years (vehicles and 
equipment).

Not later than one year            204            431 204 431

Later than one and not later than two years            142              85 142 85

Later than two and not later than five years            109            102 109 102

Later than five years            127               -              127               -   

           582            618            582            618 

27 MAJOR VARIATIONS FROM BUDGET

Income Statement Variances - Revenue

Taranaki District Health Board recorded a surplus of $223 thousand compared with a budgeted deficit of $2.299 million. 

A total of $3.8 million additional revenue over budget was received as follows (2010: $7.4m):

Variance Variance

unaudited unaudited

2011 2010

$000 $000

     Ministry of Health Funding          4,223          4,998 

     Accident Compensation Revenue (ACC)           (417)           (229)

     Inter District Flows            396            132 

     Inter Provider Revenue           (170)            604 

     Interest Received              12            510 

     Donations Received                7            810 

     Other           (260)            536 

         3,791          7,361 

Income Statement Revenue Explanations

     Ministry of Health Funding Additional funding devolved from Ministry in excess of funding envelope advised.

     Accident Compensation Revenue (ACC) (i) No price increases from ACC, (ii) reduced referrals from ACC.

     Inter District Flows Inflow of other DHB population greater than expected.

     Inter Provider Revenue Reduced revenue by HIQ Limited for the provision of Healthzone service to other DHB's.

    Other Exit of Ambulance Service and reduced revenue from part user charges.
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Income Statement Variances - Expenditure

A total of $0.1m additional expenditure over budget were incurred as follows (2010: $8.3m):

Variance Variance

Unaudited Unaudited

2011 2010

$000 $000

     Employee Benefit costs        (1,746)          3,818 

     Outsourced services          3,023          4,085 

     Clinical supplies           (247)        (1,184)

     Payments to non-health board providers            785          5,591 

     Other        (1,718)        (4,060)

             97          8,250 

Income Statement Expenditure Explanations

     Employee Benefit costs (i) use of locums where medical positions have not been filled, (ii) exit of ambulance service.

     Outsourced services Locum costs and work outsourced.

     Clinical supplies Pharmaceutical costs reduced against expected and budgeted.

     Payments to non-health board providers Additional costs for IDF Outflows.

     Other Reduced hotel and laundry costs against budget, reduced interest expense against budget, 
reduced other operating expenses against budget

Variance Variance

Unaudited Unaudited

2011 2010

$000 $000

Balance Sheet Variances

     Cash & S/T Deposits            519           (879)

     Other Financial Assets              10        (3,945)

     Property, plant and equipment          4,067        13,927 

     Receivables & Prepayments            509        (2,279)

     Employee Entitlements           (574)        (1,003)

Balance Sheet Explanations

     Cash & S/T Deposits Timing of payments to suppliers.

     Other Financial Assets Loan to associate company Allied Laundry Services Limited.

     Property, Plant and Equipment Preliminary Project Maunga expenditure in work in progress.

     Employee Entitlements Timing of Payroll payments.
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29 EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION

Employees (excluding board members), including management and medical staff, receiving remuneration in excess of $100,000 per annum are as 
follows:

Remuneration Range Actual 2011 Actual 2010
100,000 - 110,000              14              19 
110,001 - 120,000              14              13 
120,001 - 130,000                8              11 
130,001 - 140,000              10                8 
140,001 - 150,000              11                9 
150,001 - 160,000                2                9 
160,001 - 170,000                5                4 
170,001 - 180,000                6                7 
180,001 - 190,000                4                2 
190,001 - 200,000                3                1 
200,001 - 210,000                4                2 
210,001 - 220,000                1                3 
220,001 - 230,000                2                4 
230,001 - 240,000                3                4 
240,001 - 250,000                2                2 
250,001 - 260,000                4                3 
260,001 - 270,000                3               -   
270,001 - 280,000                1                2 
280,001 - 290,000                2                3 
290,001 - 300,000                3                1 
300,001 - 310,000                1                1 
310,001 - 320,000               -                  1 
370,001 - 380,000                1                1 
450,001 - 460,000                1               -   

           105            110 

Clinicians 86 91
Management 19 19
Total 105 110

If the remuneration of part time clinical staff was grossed up to a full time equivalent (FTE) basis, the total of employees with salaries of $100,000 or 
more would be 132 (2010: 132)

28 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Fees to principal auditor (Ernst & Young)

Audit of annual financial statements            216            205            189            181 

Other assurance-related services               -                 -                 -                 -   

Tax compliance               -                 -                 -                 -   

Due diligence services               -                 -                 -                 -   

           216            205            189            181 

Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010

$000 $000 $000 $000

Other Audit Fees paid (non Ernst & Young)
ACC Partnership Program - Verification New Zealand 
Limited                1                3                1                3 

HealthShare Ltd Pharmacy Quality Audits              30              21              30              21 
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31 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Taranaki District Health Board's capital is its Crown equity, reserves, Trust/Special funds and retained earnings/(losses). Equity is represented by net 
assets. Taranaki District Health Board manages its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and general financial dealings prudently in compliance with the 
budgetary process.

The Taranaki District Health Board's policy and objectives of managing the equity is to ensure the Taranaki District Health Board effectively achieves its 
goals and objectives, whilst maintaining a strong capital base. The Taranaki District Health Board policies in respect of capital management are reviewed 
regularly by the governing Board. 

Changes in public equity are as a result of the Crown either (I) injecting equity for specific funding, or (ii) requiring Taranaki District Health Board to 
repay equity as specified by the Crown.

During the year the Crown advanced $1,514k (2010: $2,328k) for (i) Community Oral Health Service of $786k (2010: $2,066k), (ii) for the interRAI 
National DHB Implementation Project of $166k (2010: $262k), and (iii) Medicines Reconciliation $561k (2010: $0k). Public equity of $959k (2010: 
$959k) was repaid to the Crown during the year. The repayments in both 2011 & 2010 was to repay the Ministry of Health funding of additional 
depreciation expense on buildings revalued at 30 June 2006.

There have been no changes in Taranaki District Health Board's management of capital during the year.

Taranaki District Health Board is not subject to external banking covenants.

32 EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

Aside from the renewal of the loan facilities as described in Note 17, there were no material movements or events subsequent to the balance date.

30 TERMINATION PAYMENTS

For the period to 30 June 2011, 5 employees or former employees of Taranaki District Health Board received payment in respect of termination of 
employment totalling $51,949 (2010: 8 payments totalling $77,683).
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Output Class: Public Health

Budgeted revenue ($000s) 
(Unaudited)

Actual revenue ($000s)
(Unaudited)

Budgeted expenditure 
($000s) (Unaudited)

Actual expenditure ($000s)
(Unaudited)

5,500 6,504 5,500 5,316

Main areas of performance in Public 

Health Service output class

Main area of performance 

measures (Quantity, quality, 

timeliness and effectiveness 

measures as appropriate for the 

Output area of performance)

Volumes SSP Status and Comments

Baseline

(09/10)

2010/11 SSP

Results

1. Health Promotion and Education 

services which include:

Social Environments

Health Promoting Schools

Nutrition and Physical Activity

Sexual Health

Early Child Health (Well Child)

Injury Prevention

Youth Health

Integrated tobacco and alcohol plan

Numbers of health promotion 

and education programmes 

undertaken

8 8 8 Achieved

Smoking Cessation Programmes % of Hospitalised Smokers 

provided with advice and 

support to quit

16% 90% 83% Not Achieved

Although TDHB has not 

achieved against the target 

there has been significant 

progress throughout the year  

with June 2011 reaching a high 

of 92%.

Support to quit in Primary Care 0 80% 30% Not Achieved

A range of support had been 

put in place to support the 

achievement of this target in 

Primary Care. The Taranaki 

Tobacco Action Plan is aiming 

to  strengthen Primary Care 

cessation activities.
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2. Statutory and Regulatory Services 
(statutory and regulatory services 
may only be provided by some 
DHBs – e.g. those DHBs with a 
Regional Public Health Unit)

Number of communicable 
disease investigations

392 400 417 Achieved

Number of environmental 
health inspections

190 200 198 Not Achieved

Number of education and 
compliance visits to alcohol/
tobacco premises

20 50 287 Achieved

Number of Controlled 
Purchase Operation (CPO) 
tobacco premises

4 5 2 Not Achieved 
The target for the Statement of 
Service Performance was based 
on the provisional Public Health 
Annual Plan. The final Public Health 
Annual Plan expected to perform 
2 tobacco CPOs which were 
achieved.

Number of Controlled 
Purchase Operation (CPO) 
alcohol

5 7 3 Not Achieved 
The target for the Statement of 
Service Performance was based on 
the provisional Public Health Annual 
Plan. The final Public Health Annual 
Plan expected to perform 2 Alcohol 
CPOs and 3 were undertaken.

3. Population Based Screening 
Programmes including Breast 
Screening, Cervical Screening

Cervical screening % enrolled women aged 20-
69 who have been provided 
with a cervical screen in the 
last 3 years

86% 87% 89% Achieved

Cervical screening % Māori enrolled women 
aged 20-69 who have been 
provided with a cervical 
screen in the last 3 years

60% 62% 68% Achieved

4. Immunisation Services % enrolled population >65 
years given ‘flu vaccination

67% 69% 68% Not Achieved
Taranaki DHB continues to work 
with the NGO sector to improve 
the uptake of influenza vaccinations 
to this population.

% high needs population 
>65 years given ‘flu 
vaccination

65% 67% 65% Not Achieved
Taranaki DHB continues to  work with 
the NGO sector to increase access 
through outreach immunisation for 
high needs people.

% children aged fully 
immunised at 24 months

87% 92% 88% Not Achieved 
Taranaki DHB will continue work 
with both MoH and the local 
Immunisation Strategy Group to 
increase the immunisation rate 
going forward.
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Output Class: Hospital Services

Budgeted revenue ($000s)
(Unaudited)

Actual revenue ($000s)
(Unaudited)

Budgeted expenditure 
($000s) (Unaudited)

Actual expenditure ($000s)
(Unaudited)

173,400 174,532 174,700 173,392

Main areas of performance in Public 
Health Service output class

Main Measures of 
Performance (includes 
quantity, quality and 
effectiveness of outputs)

Baseline 2010/11
Target

SSP
Results

SSP Status and 
Comments

Mental Health Acute and Inpatient 
Services

% of population accessing 
services

Māori 0-19 yrs      
2.27%
Māori 20-64 yrs    
5.34%
Māori 65 + yrs      
2.58%

Other 0-19 yrs       
3.13%
Other 20-64 yrs     
3.33%
Other 65 + yrs       
3.31%

Total 0- 19 yrs        
2.90%
Total 20-64 yrs       
3.63%
Total 65 + yrs         
3.27%

3.10%

5.34%

3.60%

3.20%

3.50%

3.60%

3.12%

4.02%

3.60%

2.89%

6.79%

4.40%

3.56%

3.60%

3.30%

3.37%

4.08%

3.37%

Not Achieved 
Māori 0-19yrs  and 
Other 65+ yrs

There is work being 
undertaken in the 
NGO sector which is 
expected to improve 
the DHB result against 
the target going 
forward. The activity is 
yet to show in the 10-11 
report as the result is 
a rolling 12 months to 
March 2011.

 % of Crisis prevention plans 
up to date - for long term 
clients

90% 95% 97% Achieved

Length of Stay - Acute 
Inpatient Ward (TPW)

Best practice 
range 14-21 days 
(currently 17 days)

Remain 
within 
target 
range

15 Achieved
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Electives Services (inpatient, 
outpatient)

Total number 
of elective 
discharges

3921 4840 5185 Achieved

Total number 
of elective 
caseweights

4329 5690 5804 Achieved

Number of 
First Specialist 
Assessments 
(FSAs)

10193 10381 11295 Achieved

Elective Service 
Performance 
Indicators (ESPI)

Compliance Compliance Non 
Compliant 
in one 
Indicator

Not Achieved
Taranaki DHB has been non-compliant 
in ESPI 2 - Patients waiting longer than 6 
months for their first specialist assessment 
(FSA). Taranaki expects to be compliant by 
30 Sept 2011.

Admission on day 
of surgery as % 
of total Elective 
admissions

71% >90% 71% Not Achieved
Taranaki DHB Taranaki DHB is actively 
working towards the adoption of “The 
Productive Operating Theatre” (T-POT)  
productivity improvement initiative and 
will be submitting a proposal for this to 
the Ministry of Health in September 2011. 
The  focus of the DHB’s implementation 
will be to address known scheduling, 
booking  and patient preparation issues 
that are currently impacting on the 
delivery of  surgery. 

Identification of  procedures for day 
surgery and  increasing the proportion of 
such surgery will be part of this process.

Day Surgery 
procedures 
performed as % 
of total Elective 
admissions

64% 64% 66% Achieved

Shorter Cancer 
treatment waiting 
times

100% 100% 100% Achieved 
The % of patients  waiting less than six 
weeks (6 weeks for the period Jul 10 - Dec 
10 and 4 weeks for the period Jan 11 - 
Jun 11) between FSA and commencement 
of radiation treatment.

30 Day Mortality. 1.50% 1.50% 1.44% Achieved
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Acute Services (emergency 
department, inpatient, 
outpatient)

Shorter stays 
in emergency 
department

94% 95% 96% Achieved

Acute readmission 
rate (per 1000 
patients)

10.40% 10.40% 11.39% Not Achieved
For the current Quarter an improvement 
from 2239 to 1989 re-admissions would 
be required (250 admissions) assuming 
consistent volumes of discharges and Case 
Complexity mix.
 
The trends for the types of admissions that 
re-admit nationally are generally related to 
Abdominal Pain, Pulmonary/Respiratory, 
Poisoning, and other infections. Taranaki 
DHB see similar trends with higher than 
national levels.
 
TDHB staff attended the Health Roundtable 
Workshop in Wellington on May 12, 13 
focussing on cardiac and respiratory 
conditions and variances in Average Length 
of Stays and readmissions rates. The 
benchmarking data provided by the Health 
Roundtable confirms a problem for Taranaki 
DHB  in this area.

Investigation has shown that there is little 
affect from categorisation or coding on 
these rates and Taranaki DHB is actively 
exploring options to address this issue.

Percentage 
of total acute 
admissions that 
were treated as 
day-stay cases 

40% 18% 42% Not Achieved
Active planning to reduce Average Length 
of Stay (ALOS) is underway as part of both 
the Productive Ward, Acute pathway and 
Productive Theatre work streams within the 
DHB.

Taranaki DHB anticipates that there will a 
significant change in the performance of 
the DHB against these measures over the 
coming six months.

Reduced length 
of stay for acute 
admissions

4.03 days 4.01 days 4.21 days Not Achieved
As Above

Maternity Services Number of 
deliveries

1,419 1,419 1,427 Achieved

Neonatal length 
of stay

15.09 days ≤15.09 days 12 days Achieved

Reduced 
caesarean section 
rate

25% of total 
births

<25% 11.69% Achieved

Assessment Treatment and 
Rehabilitation Services

No’s of patient 
discharged home 
from Inpatient 
services

117 117 417 Achieved
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Main areas of 
performance in 
Support Services 
output class

Main area of performance 
measures (Quantity, quality, 
timeliness and effectiveness 
measures as appropriate for the 
Output area of performance)

Volumes SSP Status and Comments

Baseline
(09/10)

2010/11 SSP
Results

Needs Assessment 
Service Coordination 
(NASC) Services – 
Older People

Numbers of assessments 
completed

2000 2050 2,139 Achieved

Specialist Palliative 
Care Services

Numbers of patients assessed 
and supported.

435 400 509 Achieved

Rehabilitation Services 
– Older Peoples Service

Numbers of patients 100 100 92 Not Achieved

Home Based Support 
Services

Numbers of home based 
support services hours

210,000 hours 
per year

210,000 
per year

210,000 
per year

Achieved

No. New clients provided with 
Aged Residential Care (ARC) pa
Total number of clients in ARC

300

1,023

300

1023

322

1058

Achieved

Ratio of expenditure between 
Home Based Support Services 
(HBSS) and ARC

$1 HBSS 
=$4.99
ARC

$1 HBSS 
=$4.99
ARC

$1 HBSS 
= $3.98 
ARC

Achieved
We expect that by increasing the Home 
based Support Services ratio of spending 
compared to Age Residential Care 
Services we will be supporting more 
people to remain in their own homes for 
longer.

Aged Residential Care 
Bed Services

Numbers of subsidised bed 
days; hospital, rest home, 
dementia, psychogeriatric

Capacity is 
1,237 beds.
Subsidised 
Occupancy 
approx 733 
(71.6% of total 
occupied beds)

<=2 % 
increase 
in occu-
pancy

730 
(69%)

Achieved

Proportion of population 
occupying  ARC beds / 
population over 65

6% 6% 6% Achieved

Respite Care Services – 
Older People

Number of bed days of respite 
provided to support patient 
care

505 bed days 
of allocated 
respite / year

1,010 
bed 
days of 
allocated 
respite / 
year

Target = 
1,010
Actual = 
267

Not Achieved
The number of utilised respite beds is 
under target and work is continuing 
with the Interim NASC and clients to 
encourage access and take up of this 
service. There is agreement from the 
MoH for a more flexible approach to the 
provision of respite services and will be 
monitored during 11-12.

Day Services  - Older 
People

Numbers of clients being 
provided with day services

310 clients 310 
clients

292 Not Achieved
Day Care contracts are currently 
under review with a view to extending 
options and availability of Day Care and 
Dementia Day Care next year.

Output Class: Support Services

Budgeted revenue ($000s)
(Unaudited)

Actual revenue ($000s)
(Unaudited)

Budgeted expenditure 
($000s) (Unaudited)

Actual expenditure ($000s)
(Unaudited)

46,700 47,148 47,100 46,727
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Output Class: Primary and Community

Budgeted Revenue ($000s)
(Unaudited)

Actual Revenue ($000s)
(Unaudited)

Budgeted Expenditure 
($000s) (Unaudited)

Actual Expenditure ($000s)
(Unaudited)

82,200 83,561 82,800 84,810

Main 
areas of 
performance 
in Primary 
and 
Community 
Health 
Service 
output class

Main area of 
performance 
measures (Quantity, 
quality, timeliness 
and effectiveness 
measures as 
appropriate for 
the Output area of 
performance)

Volumes SSP Status and Comments

Baseline
(09/10)

2010/11 SSP
Results

Primary 
Health Care 
Services 
(capitation/
first contact)

The number of 
people enrolled 
with primary care

Peak 

Māori 5,864
Pacific 339
Other 46,699
Total 52,902
HTPHO
Māori 5,673
Pacific 463
Other 39,055
Total 45,191

Te Tihi Hauora 
O Taranaki
Māori 3,449
Pacific 90
Other 2,076
Total 5,615
Non-PHO 
Enrolled
Total 2,535

Peak 

Māori 5,864
Pacific 339
Other 46,699
Total 52,902
HTPHO
Māori 5,673
Pacific 463
Other 39,055
Total 45,191

Te Tihi 
Hauora O 
Taranaki
Māori 3,449
Pacific 90
Other 2,076
Total 5,615
Non-PHO 
Enrolled
Total 2,535

Midlands 
Regional 
Health 
Network 
Charitable 
Trust

Māori 11,897
Pacific 854
Other 86,068
Total 98,819
Te Oranganui 
Trust 
Incorporated
Māori 321
Pacific 7
Other 547
Total 875

Te Tihi 
Hauora O 
Taranaki
Māori 3,313
Pacific 77
Other 2,008
Total 5,398
Non-PHO 
Enrolled
Total 2,535

Achieved
See page 19 For details on the consolidation of 
PHOs.

Ratio of General 
Practice 
consultations 
provided to High 
needs people 
compared with 
non-high needs 
people

Midland Health 
Network 

 
Te Tihi PHO 

Total 1.06
 

≥1.00

≥1.00

≥1.00

1.04

0.96

1

Achieved

Not 
Achieved

Achieved

One of the outcomes intended with 
the current work to integrate the 
agreements of Te Tihi Hauora o 
Taranaki PHO and partner practices 
into a whanau ora agreed outcomes 
based contract is to provide flexibility 
and increase the capacity of this small 
PHO to address the periodic historical 
concerns of non delivery to this high 
needs patient group. 
See page 19 For details on the 
consolidation of PHOs.
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Oral Health Services Number of pre-
school children 
enrolled.

5,211 5,543 6,025 Achieved

Number of 5-12 
year old children 
enrolled with oral 
health services

11,640 12,000 12,148 Achieved

Number of 
5-12 year old  
examination

18,129 20,000 23,408 Achieved

Number of Year 8 
children examined

1,363 1,370 1,309 Not Achieved
The total number of 
Year 8 Students varies 
each - year the 2010 
Year 8 group is smaller 
than in previous years 
and this is reflected in 
the difference between 
the target number and 
number seen.

Number of 
adolescents who 
receive oral health 
services

5,304 6,000 5,065 Not Achieved
Taranaki DHB will be 
working closely with 
the regional adolescent 
co-ordination service, 
contracted private 
dentists and the 
Community Oral Health 
Service to enhance 
future performance.

Number of enrolled 
and treated 
(essential) low 
income adults

434 500 1,800 Achieved

The proportion 
of 5-12 year old 
children that are 
enrolled with oral 
health services

99% 99% 103% Achieved
The denominator for 
this measure is the 
estimated projected 
number of children in 
the 5-12 age group as 
calculated by Statistics 
New Zealand for MoH. 
The number of children 
actually enrolled 
exceeded the projected 
estimates by 3%.
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Primary and 
Community Care 
Programmes.

Number of people 
that are provided 
with Primary Mental 
Health Initiative 
services

200 200 415 Achieved

Number of patients 
who are enrolled in 
Care Plus

Peak
HTPHO
TTHPHO
Total

30
1,808
96
1,934

≥ 1,544
≥ 1,808
≥ 163
≥ 3,515

1,880

202
2,082

Not Achieved
Following a change to the Care 
Plus payment methodology 
for the Midlands Regional 
Health Network Trust to 
be based on eligible rather 
than enrolled population the 
careplus enrolled population 
has decreased by 3.5% for this 
PHO. Te Tihi Hauora o Taranaki 
PHO continues to increase their 
Care Plus enrolled population. 
See page 19 For details on the 
consolidation of PHOs. 

The proportion 
of the eligible 
population that is 
enrolled in Care 
Plus 

Peak
HTPHO
TTHPHO
Total

1.40%
76.50%
33.40%
31.40%

≥ 50%
≥ 76.5%
≥ 50%
≥ 57%

40%

70%
42%

Diabetes annual 
reviews provided

3,458 4,338 4,375 Achieved

Cardio-Vascular 
Disease (CVD) 
Risk Assessment, 
delivered in primary 
care:
Total population

Māori population

65%

49%

67%

53%

70%

57%

Achieved

Retinal Screens 
delivered

1,857 >1,857 2,859 Achieved

Pharmacist 
Services

Numbers of 
dispensed items 
provided to 
patients

1,711,363 1,814,045 1,875,407 Achieved

Total:

Budgeted Revenue ($000s) Actual Revenue ($000s) Budgeted Expenditure 
($000s)

Actual Expenditure ($000s)

307,800 311,744 310,100 310,245
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